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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good morning,

          3  everyone, and welcome to this meeting of the

          4  Council's Committee on Contracts. My name is Robert

          5  Jackson, I'm the Chair of the Committee.

          6                 This morning, we will be discussing

          7  Intro. No. 45, and bill that is introduced by

          8  Council Member Helen Sears that will govern how the

          9  City procures its architectural and engineering

         10  services.

         11                 Ensuring that we procure these

         12  services is the best possible way, because with poor

         13  planning comes poor construction and projects that

         14  cost more and take longer to complete.

         15                 Currently the City procures those

         16  architect and engineering services that it does not

         17  perform itself through a value-based method of

         18  procurement; that is, the City uses a combination of

         19  technical expertise and price competition to

         20  determine who receives contracts.

         21                 Intro. 45 would change this. Under

         22  Intro. 45, it would not be until after the contract

         23  is awarded that price would be negotiated with the

         24  highest technically rated firm. This form of source

         25  selection is known as qualifications-based
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          2  selection, or QBS. Significantly Intro. 45 would

          3  also require the City consult with the most

          4  technically qualified firms in creating detailed and

          5  specific planning and design concepts before the

          6  contract is awarded.

          7                 This facet of the law is designed to

          8  ensure better conceived projects that will be

          9  subject to fewer changes during construction,

         10  changes that can drive the price of construction

         11  projects up traumatically.

         12                 Indeed, this City is currently

         13  plagued with such construction project cost overruns

         14  and time delays. Many ask, though, how can you

         15  relegate price when deciding who to award a contract

         16  to. Many others ask, when you are building important

         17  public structures, such as bridges and tunnels,

         18  shouldn't technical expertise, experience and track

         19  record be the most important factors in your

         20  decision?

         21                 Would you choose a doctor by the

         22  price he or she charges for their services? There is

         23  a delicate balance to be made here related to our

         24  obligation to ensure that we get the best overall

         25  value and safety in construction that is paid for
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          2  with the public's money.

          3                 Currently the federal government and

          4  42 states, including our own, utilize some form of

          5  QBS when selecting architect and engineering

          6  services.

          7                 Today we will begin the debate on the

          8  issue on whether or not we should join them.

          9                 With that, I would like to introduce

         10  the prime sponsor of this proposed legislation,

         11  Council Member Helen Sears of Queens.

         12                 Council Member Sears.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         14  much, Mr. Chairman. Although I don't sit on this

         15  Committee, I really appreciate the opportunity to be

         16  here this morning and have some remarks about why I

         17  introduced Intro. 45.

         18                 And I did because of my concerns

         19  about the way the City procures certain services

         20  that it needs performed. In this case, the service

         21  in question is that provided by architectural

         22  engineering firms. These are specialized services

         23  that cannot be provided by any one firm, and even

         24  many specialized firms cannot provide all needs.

         25                 Currently, all contracts for
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          2  architectural and engineering services with City

          3  agencies, are awarded on the basis of competitive

          4  bidding where price is a significant if not primary

          5  factor.

          6                 This type of procurement for

          7  essentially professional services, is not in the

          8  best interest of the public or the City agency that

          9  does the procurement.

         10                 Instead, the City should select the

         11  best qualified firm first, and discuss the price at

         12  a later date.

         13                 Price is an essential component in

         14  contracting out for work, which should come later on

         15  in the process. Only after the overall parameters of

         16  the job required have been fully addressed and

         17  comprehended should the price come into play.

         18                 In the case of Intro. 45, three firms

         19  would be chosen based on annually submitted

         20  statements from firms of qualifications and

         21  performance data. The City agency would then create

         22  a scope of services for the project which includes

         23  its technical requirements and design concepts. At

         24  that point, one firm will be chosen and negotiations

         25  will begin for a fair and reasonable price for
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          2  services.

          3                 If a price cannot be reached, the

          4  agency can go to the next firm from the three

          5  originally chosen.

          6                 A comprehensive scope of services is

          7  important in the early stages, because it will lead

          8  to better planning and less delays and cost

          9  overruns. After all, the point is we want to hire

         10  the firm that will do quality work on time and for

         11  the price agreed to.

         12                 Both the federal government and the

         13  state government have recognized that selections for

         14  profession design services be made on the best

         15  qualified basis for each project, and I believe that

         16  New York City deserves no less.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you,

         19  Council Member Sears, for coming this morning and

         20  speaking on behalf of your bill that I understand

         21  that you introduced before, and it's now being

         22  revived under this session, and we look forward to

         23  debating this issue and deciding what's best for New

         24  York City.

         25                 With that, I would like to introduce
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          2  the first witness. Ms. Terri Matthews, who is the

          3  Acting Director of the Mayor's Office of Contracts.

          4                 Good morning, Terri.

          5                 MS. MATTHEWS: Hello.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How are you?

          7                 MS. MATTHEWS: Fine. Thanks. How are

          8  you?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good to see you.

         10                 MS. MATTHEWS: Thank you. My name is

         11  Terri Matthews, and I am the Acting Director of the

         12  Mayor's Office of Contracts, and Acting City Chief

         13  Procurement Officer. I appreciate the opportunity to

         14  appear before you today on Intro. 45.

         15                 This proposed legislation would

         16  prohibit agencies from considering price when

         17  selecting architectural and engineering consultants.

         18                 Even if this proposed legislation met

         19  an existing need, which we believe it does not, it

         20  is hard to conceive of a worse fiscal environment

         21  than the one we are in, to forbid agencies to

         22  consider price for anything.

         23                 We believe the current system used by

         24  construction agencies for selecting architects and

         25  engineers ensures that the City receives the highest
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          2  quality in its construction projects while striking

          3  the appropriate balance between quality and price.

          4                 Accordingly the Administration

          5  opposes Intro. 45.

          6                 The proponents of Intro. 45 would

          7  have you believe that the City only considers price

          8  when selecting architectural engineering services.

          9  And as a result, we do not select those of the best

         10  qualities.

         11                 This is not true in either respect.

         12  The City almost never uses the competitive sealed

         13  bid process, a process based on price alone, to

         14  dictate a selection of an architect or an engineer.

         15                 Typically agencies use the

         16  competitive sealed proposal process to select

         17  architects and engineers. To initiate a procurement

         18  under the competitive sealed proposal process, the

         19  agency issues a request for proposals, which

         20  outlines the scope of services required and the

         21  evaluation criteria to be used in selecting a

         22  consultant.

         23                 A response to an RFP is typically a

         24  technical proposal and a cost proposal, each in

         25  separate sealed envelopes.
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          2                 Generally, only the technical

          3  proposal is scored. The elements of the technical

          4  proposals are quality based, experience, capacity

          5  and approach, and are a way to produce a total

          6  technical score.

          7                 While price is considered in

          8  assessing which of the highest technically ranked

          9  firms are ultimately selected, it is not the only

         10  factor.

         11                 City officials selecting a proposal

         12  using this method are already under a Charter

         13  mandate to select the proposal that is most

         14  advantageous to the City.

         15                 Selecting a proposal that is most

         16  advantageous to the City may result in a variety of

         17  scenarios:

         18                 The agency may conclude that the

         19  lowest price from among qualified firms will meet

         20  the City's needs in a particular case where the

         21  difference in the technical score is negligible. The

         22  agency may mathematically balance price and quality

         23  by selecting the firm offering the lowest price per

         24  technical point, or the agency may choose the firm

         25  asking the higher price, and price per technical
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          2  point, on the ground that the expenditure of

          3  additional funds will be in the City's best

          4  interest.

          5                 Agencies may use other source

          6  selection methods as well. For example, under the

          7  limited circumstances described in the City's

          8  Procurement Policy Board rules, agencies may select

          9  architectural and engineering services through the

         10  negotiated acquisition process.

         11                 Under the negotiated acquisition

         12  process, quality, not price, is the primary factor,

         13  because the PPB rules require that agencies

         14  negotiate with all qualified firms.

         15                 If the firms that an agency is

         16  negotiating with are similarly situated with respect

         17  to technical qualifications, under the PPB's

         18  negotiated acquisition rule, the agency would

         19  negotiate with all those firms to obtain the best

         20  combination of quality and price.

         21                 Thus, the City agencies have several

         22  source selection methods to purchase architectural

         23  and engineering services, each method affording them

         24  the flexibility to determine when and the degree to

         25  which take price into account.
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          2                 To repeat, agencies have a plethora

          3  of procurement tools to ensure that price is rarely

          4  the single factor in selecting any professional. As

          5  a general rule, I would submit that it is sad public

          6  policy to eliminate flexibility in the procurement

          7  system. In particular, it is bad public policy to

          8  eliminate flexibility in the absence of any benefit

          9  to be gained.

         10                 Intro. 45 would not guarantee better

         11  designs, nor would it save the City any money. On

         12  the contrary, it would increase expenditures, given

         13  the absence of any meaningful price competition for

         14  such services.

         15                 The reality is the City's current

         16  selection process works, making the proposed bill

         17  unnecessary. There is no evidence to suggest that

         18  the current selection process has resulted in

         19  deficient project designs or efficient engineering

         20  services.

         21                 While some architectural and

         22  engineering firms may claim that the City

         23  procurement process discourages firms from seeking

         24  City business, this claim is unsupportive. The City

         25  does business with the top architectural and
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          2  engineering firms.

          3                 There are many occasions where the

          4  City has elected to spend more money to obtain

          5  extraordinary talent.

          6                 At the same time, the City has saved

          7  millions of dollars by being able to select firms,

          8  rank second or third in technical evaluation, which

          9  is not to say that those are not top ranked firms in

         10  general, in situations where the difference in the

         11  technical proposals of the competing firms was

         12  minimal, but the difference in their prices was

         13  substantial.

         14                 Under the proposed bill, an agency

         15  would be compelled to negotiate with only the

         16  highest ranked firm, even when there would be very

         17  little practical difference between the technical

         18  qualifications among the competing firms. If this

         19  bill were to become law, the City would pay more for

         20  services than necessary without improving the

         21  quality of construction, a highly undesirable

         22  outcome given the extreme current fiscal

         23  constraints.

         24                 Further, giving special treatment to

         25  architects and engineers simply because they are
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          2  professionals would send the wrong policy message to

          3  professionals in the many other areas in which the

          4  City purchases professional services. In addition to

          5  architectural and engineering services, the City

          6  purchases other critical professional services, such

          7  as foster care, home care, senior services, domestic

          8  violence prevention, employment training, legal

          9  services for the indigent, health care for City

         10  employees, and youth services.

         11                 Currently agencies purchase all

         12  services through a competitive process where quality

         13  dominates the selection but price remains a factor.

         14                 There is no reason to treat

         15  architectural and engineering services differently

         16  than other professional services.

         17                 To insulate architectural and

         18  engineering services from our need to consider the

         19  prices they offer for their services would, in some

         20  sense, tell the entire vendor community that

         21  construction projects are more important than the

         22  areas not given such special treatment. This is a

         23  message this Administration does not want to send.

         24                 In summary, Intro. 45 would restrict

         25  both the City's flexibility to buy architectural and
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          2  engineering services and the City's ability to save

          3  money, where appropriate.

          4                 Given the current selection process

          5  strikes an appropriate balance between quality and

          6  price, I urge the Committee to reject this bill.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  testify, and if you have any questions, I'd be happy

          9  to answer them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, Ms.

         11  Matthews.

         12                 Before we begin any questioning, I

         13  would like to introduce other members of the

         14  Contracts Committee that are present. Joseph

         15  Addabbo, from the great Borough of Queens is to my

         16  left, and Council Member Yvette Clarke from the

         17  great Borough of Brooklyn is to my extreme left. And

         18  up in the balcony, if you turn around, there is a

         19  group from Korea, the Enchon Metropolitan City

         20  Government of Korea. Welcome. Thank you for coming.

         21                 And what we are discussing is whether

         22  or not to pass a law that would mandate the City of

         23  New York to hire architectural and engineering firms

         24  based on a quality-based system, and Ms. Matthews,

         25  you may have heard by the testimony, said that they
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          2  use a system where they get bids and they look at

          3  the technical aspects of it first, and then they

          4  come to a group and then they open up the bids as

          5  far as money, and then they score and determine in

          6  their opinion which one is best overall.

          7                 And, so, depending on how long you

          8  stay today, you will hear, you have heard her

          9  testimony, she represents the City of New York, the

         10  Mayor's Office of Contracts, and you have other

         11  individuals representing firms that will give their

         12  opinions about this particular matter.

         13                 So, from a process point of view, we

         14  will hold this hearing today and maybe another

         15  hearing, if necessary, to hear information on that

         16  before we actually voted. And once the Committee

         17  votes it out, let's assume we vote yes, if we vote

         18  yes, then it goes to the entire City Council 51

         19  members and the City Council will vote on it.

         20                 If the City Council votes it out of

         21  the Council, then the bill goes to the Mayor to be

         22  signed into law.

         23                 If the Mayor decides that he doesn't

         24  want to sign it into law, based on the

         25  recommendations of his advisors, then he will reject
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          2  it, and then the City Council, if necessary, would

          3  have to override the Mayor's veto in order to turn

          4  it into law.

          5                 So, that's a process that we're going

          6  about in order to determine whether or not we are

          7  going to turn Intro. 45 in with Council Member Helen

          8  Sears, this woman here from Queens, introduce into

          9  this session. So, thank you for coming.

         10                 With that, I'm going to throw the

         11  floor open to questions and I would like to

         12  introduce before that, Dr. Kendall Stewart from the

         13  great Borough of Brooklyn.

         14                 Good morning.

         15                 The floor is open for questions.

         16                 Joseph Addabbo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

         18  very much for your time and testimony today. In lieu

         19  of the competitive sealed process, competitive

         20  sealed proposal process, what percentage, would you

         21  consider it your most popular process for awarding

         22  contracts?

         23                 MS. MATTHEWS: I think as far as the

         24  majority, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay.
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          2                 MS. MATTHEWS: I mean, negotiated

          3  acquisition, the other one, is a special

          4  circumstance, so I would have to say competitive bid

          5  proposals would be the majority.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay. Aside

          7  from pricing with that process, do you feel that we

          8  consider qualifications and confidence enough in

          9  that process?

         10                 MS. MATTHEWS: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: But pricing

         12  would be the best factor?

         13                 MS. MATTHEWS: It's a factor. The

         14  first part, when they're evaluating the technical

         15  part of the proposal, price doesn't come into effect

         16  at all.

         17                 As a quality-based, it's the same

         18  kind of evaluation. Once they rank them, then they

         19  open up the price, and that way they get to see

         20  where they all fall, and even then, depending on the

         21  project and the need in the agency, the price has

         22  different relative ranking from project to project.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, and

         24  just so I'm sure I'm clear, the first aspect that

         25  you consider for ranking purposes, which would be
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          2  what aspect?

          3                 MS. MATTHEWS: It's the quality

          4  measured by a variety of factors.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: A quality of

          6  the work to be done?

          7                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well, I guess it's the

          8  technical qualifications, it's their proposal, it's

          9  their qualifications, it's their history, it was in

         10  here. It's the same stuff as the quality-based

         11  selection criteria. The difference is, essential

         12  difference is quality-based selection, we would not

         13  ever look at price until after we selected. In what

         14  we do, we look at price as part of making the

         15  selection but only after we've looked at the

         16  technical qualifications and the narrative of

         17  proposal.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 MS. MATTHEWS: And usually you look at

         21  the price of those technically ranked firms.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ms. Matthews,

         23  there are 42 other states, including New York State

         24  that currently has this type of process. Do you have

         25  any opinion about the way they do business? If they
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          2  have adopted this, and why New York City has -- and

          3  let me explain why I asked that question.

          4                 Because I look around on a lot of

          5  other different things, and I see that New York City

          6  is way behind other states and municipalities and

          7  moving forward and being progressive on behalf of

          8  the citizens of our great City. And, so, if 42 other

          9  states and New York State is doing this, why

         10  shouldn't we be doing it? And have you looked at

         11  that positive aspects as far as why the State of New

         12  York and 42 others states have adopted this, and why

         13  New York City has not? Can you do an analysis for

         14  me?

         15                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well, when we were

         16  discussing this bill, we met with all the

         17  construction agencies who do the work. So, you would

         18  think that if there was this desire and pressing

         19  need for this we would hear from the agencies, and

         20  we didn't. In fact, Department of Transportation,

         21  which under certain circumstances, and certain

         22  federal projects is required to do this, so they

         23  actually have experience doing both. You would think

         24  having had experience they would be the ones to say,

         25  yes, we should do this across the board, and that
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          2  wasn't the case.

          3                 I think what we're hearing from the

          4  agencies, is that we know we have an unusual system

          5  and we've been talking about procurement reform,

          6  it's sort of unique to us, but one way to look at

          7  this is not so much cutting edge but that it really

          8  meets the need for us, that it's actually uniquely

          9  tailored, and so the fact is we do have flexibility.

         10                 We look at this bill as limiting

         11  flexibility by mandating that we don't consider

         12  price, and I believe the agencies feel that they've

         13  managed to strike the appropriate balance and that

         14  they would be losing something by not being able to

         15  consider price.

         16                 So, I mean, I know it's kind of, I

         17  mean, 42 states and the federal government, but it

         18  works here. Among our agencies that is the

         19  conclusion. We canvassed them all, we met with them,

         20  we didn't hear we must have this.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I'm not an

         22  engineer, I'm not a contractor, so I can't speak

         23  from a technical point of view. But I do know as a

         24  lay person, as a citizen of this great city, and

         25  especially when it comes to construction projects
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          2  that we hear on the news. And you know, you only

          3  hear the ones on the news that are either doing

          4  something real great, and normally it's when it's

          5  not so great, because when you're doing something

          6  well and you want to publicize it, you put a press

          7  release out, you don't get any media coverage. But

          8  you do something wrong, everybody will be there.

          9                 So, as a layperson and as a citizen

         10  of this great city, I hear constantly on the news

         11  that the contract has to be renegotiated and that

         12  now the initial price that it put out, now that the

         13  price is one and a half, two times as much, because

         14  it had to be renegotiated because something

         15  happened, and what I'm saying is that overall it

         16  appears as though many times that the City

         17  negotiates with a vendor or construction company or

         18  whoever for a particular price to do a job, it seems

         19  as though there's continuous negotiations even after

         20  the contract is let. And, so, that the price that

         21  was agreed upon initially is not what the price that

         22  finally before the project is over, and do you

         23  think, though, that this new process that's being

         24  introduce by Intro. 45 would procure that particular

         25  problems that exist that a layperson sees on a
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          2  continuous basis?

          3                 MS. MATTHEWS: I don't know that this

          4  is a problem that's only a New York City problem,

          5  the issue of contracts that have cost overruns. I'm

          6  not aware of any study, and maybe the people who

          7  come after us have studies, but I'm not aware that

          8  there's a causal connection between QBS and lower,

          9  less overruns, and our system and higher overruns.

         10  We're just not aware of any study that sort of

         11  proves that hypothesis.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But you

         13  understand the concern though that I'm raising,

         14  because that's an issue.

         15                 MS. MATTHEWS: Yes. It is an issue,

         16  but, you know, I think that is a problem like

         17  endemic, the cost overrun problem, and I think it's

         18  just New York City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, I understand

         20  that.

         21                 But in your opinion, if we adopted

         22  this Intro into law, in your opinion, would that

         23  solve the problem?

         24                 MS. MATTHEWS: I don't believe so. No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You don't
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          2  believe so?

          3                 MS. MATTHEWS: No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          5                 Does the Department of Design and

          6  Construction oppose QBS process, do you know?

          7                 MS. MATTHEWS: What do you mean? None

          8  of the agencies wanted --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You mentioned

         10  DOT; is that correct?

         11                 MS. MATTHEWS: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, the

         13  Division of Design and Construction is the division

         14  that handles projects for several agencies; is that

         15  correct?

         16                 MS. MATTHEWS: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         18                 Do they support or oppose QBS? If you

         19  don't know, it's okay.

         20                 MS. MATTHEWS: No, all of the agencies

         21  were united in opposing Intro. 45.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: When you say all

         23  of the agencies --

         24                 (speaking to audience.) Thanks for

         25  coming, and have a great day, okay? All right, and
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          2  hopefully I'll come to visit you in Korea pretty

          3  soon.

          4                 MS. MATTHEWS: No, all of the agencies

          5  were on the same page.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, I don't

          7  want to put you on the spot, but you're talking

          8  about DOT, the Division of Design and Construction.

          9  DEP? What about DEP?

         10                 MS. MATTHEWS: DEP was there. Parks

         11  was there, and all of the major construction

         12  agencies were there. This is the City's position,

         13  sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You think they

         15  were just taking the party line and they really

         16  meant it? I'm not supposed to ask that question?

         17                 No, I'm serious, Terri. Do you think

         18  they were just taking a party line? And I'm being

         19  quite frank, let me just finish, I'm being quite

         20  honest when I say that, is because I know Mayor

         21  Bloomberg has clearly said, you know, that he's the

         22  Mayor and he's in charge, and that, you know, he

         23  doesn't like people talking out of turn. And I want

         24  to know whether or not they're just taking a party

         25  line because this is the Mayor's position, or they
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          2  truly believe that, if you have an opinion on that.

          3                 MS. MATTHEWS; well, having been in

          4  the room where we all discussed it, no. We all

          5  discussed it about a week ago, and it was unanimous.

          6  This bill doesn't do -- it reduces flexibility,

          7  which is something that none of the agencies want.

          8  So, it's not a top down, actually it was a bottom up

          9  consensus.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, can you

         11  comment, I believe that this bill does not mandate

         12  that we not consider price, just that we negotiate

         13  it after awarding the contract.

         14                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well, for us that is

         15  mandating, we're not considering a price at the

         16  appropriate time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: An appropriate

         18  time.

         19                 MS. MATTHEWS: Yes, we believe that

         20  after the fact is limiting flexibility, you don't --

         21  you don't have the benefit of the competitive

         22  process. Our system, and it's a value that our

         23  system, it's one of the core values of our system

         24  that the competitive nature procurement, open,

         25  competitive, fair.
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          2                 And it's the timing, it's true that

          3  QBS is after, you consider price later, but you feel

          4  that considering price, for selecting the firm, you

          5  need to -- it needs to be part of the decision. We

          6  have the flexibility to change the relative weight

          7  of it. On a particular project it could be very

          8  minimal, because there are a number of projects

          9  where we've gone with a higher priced firm. We have

         10  the ability to do it, but it's a choice. And then

         11  often times the technical, the distinction among the

         12  top rated, the top rated technical scores are so

         13  small, you pretty much got -- but then the price is

         14  so big -- the differential is so large, you would be

         15  denied that opportunity from knowing, you wouldn't

         16  know, if you were somehow able to drive down the

         17  cost, which, honestly, with the budget situation

         18  that we have, it just, this is certainly not a good

         19  time to embark on an experiment like that.

         20                 To deny agencies the ability to save

         21  money, when you have all the facts in front of you,

         22  the technical proposal, the price proposal, you're

         23  putting it in a paper bag later and you don't have

         24  the benefit of the competition in any way on price.

         25  You get it on the technical stuff. You've got it in
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          2  both places out the front end, and none of the

          3  agencies want to give that up.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: To the best of

          5  your knowledge, are there architectural firms that

          6  will not do business with the City of New York, due

          7  to the way you do business right now?

          8                 MS. MATTHEWS: I'm not aware myself

          9  that there are architects who said we won't do

         10  business with the City. You know that the City

         11  process is quite a process. For not just

         12  architectural and engineering services, just across

         13  the board. This is what we hear as a result of

         14  procurement form. Our process, you know, is not

         15  easy, and it may discourage the faint of heart. So,

         16  it's indeed possible that we don't get everyone. We

         17  make the best effort to get our request for

         18  proposals go out to a board list. It's open, it's in

         19  the public record. So, it's not like we're doing

         20  anything to discourage it. But our process is not an

         21  easy process. So there may be a consequence for

         22  that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Clarke.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, and
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          2  good morning, Mr. Chair.

          3                 Good morning, Ms. Matthews.

          4                 I'm just trying to get a sense of

          5  exactly where -- I mean, you stated where the

          6  Administration is but the rationale is not really

          7  sinking in with me.

          8                 I want to know whether you have

          9  numbers on a percentage of engineering and

         10  architectural firms that we've done business with,

         11  that over perhaps the past five to ten years have

         12  had to come back to the City due to overruns and

         13  change orders?

         14                 MS. MATTHEWS: No, we don't have data

         15  here at the moment.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I think that

         17  would be important for us to know, because if you're

         18  talking about saving the City money, and we have

         19  seen just as lay persons the types of stop and go

         20  projects within our own neighborhoods, that before

         21  you come and negate a process that may offer an

         22  alternative, that we look at the percentages of

         23  opportunity that we've had to perhaps implement a

         24  process like this that wouldn't have cost us more in

         25  the longrun.
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          2                 I'm very much aware of how this

          3  process actually diminishes a firm's ability to do

          4  the job, quality job, do it right the first time,

          5  and not really impede progress. And when you get a

          6  number of cost overruns and change orders, there's

          7  no way that you can justify the fact that that

          8  wouldn't cost us more in the long-run.

          9                 I think the agency has an obligation

         10  to the people of the City of New York to go

         11  throughout each agency and really do the type of

         12  analysis before coming and asserting to us that this

         13  just won't work.

         14                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well, I think what

         15  we're saying is the agencies who do this work, you

         16  know, looked at the bill based on their experience

         17  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: But is it a

         19  quantified experience? I mean, everyone can look at

         20  something. If I'm resistant to change, I'm just

         21  going to look at it, blow it off and say, you know

         22  what, this is not going to work. I'd like to see

         23  statistical analysis done. And I know we have the

         24  expertise in our administration to do that, and I

         25  think that it's important if we're talking about
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          2  tough fiscal times that we come with the type of

          3  information required to justify our stance; has the

          4  City begun to do that yet?

          5                 MS. MATTHEWS: We're investigating.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: We're

          7  investigating.

          8                 I think we need to put a timetable on

          9  that investigation considering the fiscal climate

         10  that we're in, because ultimately I believe that

         11  we're probably spending more in change orders and

         12  overruns than this bill would ultimately cost us in

         13  the longrun. That's my belief. Since the agencies

         14  have beliefs, unsubstantiated beliefs. Do you see

         15  where I'm coming from?

         16                 MS. MATTHEWS: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

         18                 MS. MATTHEWS: I had the same thought

         19  myself, actually.

         20                 If there are people out there, given

         21  that the federal method has been around the states

         22  in New York State, our agency, the people in our

         23  agency talk to the people in New York State. I mean,

         24  it's a very fluid community. I've got to believe

         25  that sort of an empirical basis, that they have the
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          2  sense that there is not that great a difference

          3  between, for example, New York State cost overruns,

          4  because they have this method, and our cost

          5  overruns. It's entirely possible the cost overrun

          6  thing is, it's just endemic.

          7                 But presumably others have studied it

          8  as well. I've got to think that this analysis might

          9  have come from the industry.

         10                 We'll certainly look at it. We have

         11  an ability to look at certain areas of the City and

         12  perhaps to test the hypothesis, but I guess the

         13  other question is, in addition to asking it of us,

         14  to ask it of the people who are in the industry.

         15  They have greater experience.

         16                 We can only analyze, for example, our

         17  experience which has limited experience for the

         18  federal method. As I said, DOT has experience with

         19  both, and that's probably a place where we could

         20  look at --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Then get the

         22  data.

         23                 MS. MATTHEWS: But we don't have

         24  access to New York State data, other state data.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I'm sure with
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          2  a simple request we could get that data.

          3                 But beyond that, why are we going to

          4  those who benefitted from the system to get their

          5  advice? I mean I found that to be quite suggestive.

          6                 You said in your testimony that you

          7  spoke with the major firms, right?

          8                 MS. MATTHEWS: No, we spoke with our

          9  agencies.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Oh, I thought

         11  you went to the contractors themselves.

         12                 MS. MATTHEWS: No, no. We'd come up

         13  with a different conclusion if we talked to them.

         14                 No, we talk to our agencies.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Did anyone

         16  else hear say that we went to -- I thought I heard

         17  that. Contracting agencies, okay.

         18                 Again, I think it would be certainly

         19  worth it and probably beneficial to all of us,

         20  particularly the people of the City of New York who

         21  are concerned about the fiscal climate that we're

         22  in, that we look at a real objective statistical

         23  analysis. And I'm sure that our agencies are quite

         24  capable of doing that. They're doing this work,

         25  they're letting these contracts on a regular basis
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          2  from a layperson's viewpoint who have had to deal

          3  with numerous stop and go projects within their

          4  communities, numerous cost overruns. And in addition

          5  to that, contractors who have reached out and talked

          6  about how the process actually discourages them from

          7  doing the best work that they can because of the

          8  competitiveness of trying to get the lowest price

          9  for the best work, that indeed we need to take a

         10  look at whether in fact there's honesty and

         11  integrity in the process that currently we're

         12  currently operating under. Because if there is this

         13  honesty integrity, it just doesn't jive with the

         14  fact that we have this constant, constant pressure,

         15  and this prevalent problem of these change orders

         16  and the overruns that take place in the construction

         17  industry.

         18                 It would seem to me that that's

         19  something we should look at.

         20                 MS. MATTHEWS: We are.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Terri, on this

         23  particular question, I make an assumption, and I

         24  don't know, I haven't really seen, even though I'm

         25  sent of copies as a chair of the Contracts
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          2  Committee, when a contract is being let, I believe

          3  we receive copies of data, something like that. But

          4  my question to you is this, currently under the

          5  procurement process, I assume that there's language

          6  in there -- I'm sorry, before I began the question,

          7  I want to introduce Council Member James Davis, from

          8  the great Borough of Brooklyn. Council Member Davis.

          9                 I assume there's a clause in the

         10  contract that says that if, in fact, that I as a

         11  contractor that has agreed with the City of New York

         12  to do a project, that if I feel that based on

         13  information that I did not know before, I need to

         14  come back to renegotiate the contract for a higher

         15  price, because now the work is going to involve more

         16  hours than I had anticipated, based on the

         17  information that I had in which I drew up the

         18  contract or the details of the RFP. I assume there's

         19  a clause in there that they can come back and

         20  renegotiate a price for the contract; is that

         21  correct?

         22                 MS. MATTHEWS: What you're referring

         23  to is the change order process.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         25                 MS. MATTHEWS: And this is on the
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          2  construction contract, not the architectural

          3  engineering. You know, the architectural engineering

          4  is --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The design.

          6                 MS. MATTHEWS: The design. And that

          7  leads to the construction, and you're talking about

          8  the change order process, which is quite robust. So,

          9  yes, there is a mechanism to allow for changes to

         10  what everyone thought was the original design, the

         11  original scope and price. Things change.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I make the

         13  assumption that even with an architectural and

         14  engineering firm in designing something, even though

         15  they're not actually building it unless their

         16  design, construction and everything, that there must

         17  be a clause in the contract that if the parties feel

         18  that there needs to be a change in whatever they're

         19  building, that there's a clause in there for them to

         20  redo their design, as far as engineering or

         21  constructual. I assume that's in there also, right?

         22  Or is it not in there?

         23                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well, speaking as a

         24  lawyer, okay?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.
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          2                 MS. MATTHEWS: Not an architect. But

          3  there is a relationship between, on a construction

          4  project there is an architect and engineering

          5  consultant component in the construction, the extent

          6  to which you do major redesigns and the extent to

          7  which our projects have been subject to that, I

          8  don't know.

          9                 But there is a change order process,

         10  which is on the construction contract, and there has

         11  to -- you know, every construction project has

         12  architectural and engineering consulting services

         13  going through, so there's some kind of a

         14  relationship and there is a process for change.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I asked that

         16  question to ask this question, really --

         17                 MS. MATTHEWS: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You know,

         19  sometimes I'm not the most astute, as far as asking

         20  a direct question, but under the Intro. 45 proposed

         21  legislation, once you have selected the firm and

         22  then you then negotiate the price afterwards,

         23  wouldn't that really address the situation in order

         24  not to have what I perceive to be so many change

         25  orders and thus the price --
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          2                 MS. MATTHEWS: That's the hypothesis,

          3  and we have not seen any evidence that there is any

          4  correlation between quality-based services

          5  procurement, and not having a large level of change

          6  orders in the construction. No one has submitted

          7  this to us. Our agencies haven't gotten any sense

          8  that there really is a causal relationship.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But have you

         10  seen anything to the contrary, though?

         11                 MS. MATTHEWS: What I'm saying is --

         12  no, we haven't seen anything.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. For

         14  example, I'm sure, I know you're very busy and I do

         15  understand that, but you and your staff knew that

         16  you were having this hearing on Intro. 45, and I

         17  would just assume that you investigate all aspects.

         18  Because me, you know, I'm the type of Chairperson

         19  that will ask the question out of the blue like

         20  that, and I just think that everybody has a time to

         21  do their homework in order to find out the

         22  appropriate answers.

         23                 Whether or not, for example, if

         24  obviously the answer is you have not seen that, or

         25  what about to the contrary, so...
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          2                 MS. MATTHEWS: This was what Council

          3  Member Clarke was actually -- a statistical analysis

          4  to test the hypothesis that there's a relationship

          5  between the way you procure something, and the level

          6  of cost overruns.

          7                 We haven't done it. And we've begun

          8  the process, we would like to, if indeed there is a

          9  causal relationship of significance, we need to save

         10  money.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         12                 MS. MATTHEWS: Right now we don't

         13  know. We have a limited ability within the City to

         14  do that. If the industry has statistical analyses,

         15  you know, share them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Share them.

         17  Okay, that's good.

         18                 MS. MATTHEWS: Apparently 42 states,

         19  including the State of New York, there should be

         20  some robust data out there.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I would tend to

         22  agree, that's right.

         23                 So, the onus is going to be on them

         24  to show us what you have; is that correct?

         25                 MS. MATTHEWS: It would help.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I see your

          3  staff is shaking their heads. And I would agree with

          4  that, if they have information, they have to show

          5  it. And I'm going to be asking them too.

          6                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well, thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Believe me, I

          8  am.

          9                 Dr. Stewart and then Council Member

         10  Sears.

         11                 And I know, Terri, you're on a tight

         12  schedule, we're going to let you go. Thank you for

         13  your patience, okay?

         14                 Dr. Stewart.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair.

         17                 Good morning.

         18                 MS. MATTHEWS: Hello.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: A couple of

         20  months ago there was news that construction of

         21  schools, high schools and primary schools by SCA,

         22  runs four to five times more than the surrounding

         23  areas. Does the process that we're talking about now

         24  play any role in that?

         25                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well, the school
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          2  construction agency authority is not subject to the

          3  City procurement rules, and I have to tell you, I

          4  don't know how they procure.

          5                 But they're not subject to ours. They

          6  may actually have access to this procurement method,

          7  I just don't know, you know, quality-based

          8  selection, but they're not subject to City

          9  procurement law, so I don't know.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But if

         11  they're using the same rules, it means that whatever

         12  else we're doing can be having the same overrun of

         13  four or five times, isn't it?

         14                 MS. MATTHEWS: No, I've got to believe

         15  that they do not follow our rules at all. We can

         16  look into, you know, get back to you, about the

         17  difference between School Construction Authority and

         18  City procurement. I have to get back to you, I don't

         19  know the difference. And that would be part of the

         20  analysis that we could do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         22                 Council Member Sears, and then we're

         23  going to move on to the next witness.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. I'll

         25  just be very brief.
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          2                 I find a little conflicting that you

          3  keep putting in the difficult times that we have. I

          4  don't think anybody up here is more cognizant of the

          5  financial crisis than we are sitting up here,

          6  because we have to deal with it. And we have to

          7  approve or not approve, so we're all very sensitive

          8  to that.

          9                 I don't know that to be, to have

         10  price that is fair and reasonable based on quality

         11  services should be linked to cost constraints.

         12  Overruns, and I'm not an architect and I'm not an

         13  engineer and I should make that very clear, many

         14  times in my knowledge and experience with overruns,

         15  are not only due to the contracting of other

         16  situations, they're due to the professional flaws in

         17  the design, and then they cause overruns. That is a

         18  major consideration. And I must say that I am not

         19  negating architects and engineers and saying only a

         20  certain group can do that. It doesn't matter the

         21  size of the firm, it doesn't matter the scope of it.

         22  What matters is that they have the ability to

         23  deliver the quality services, and to have those cost

         24  overruns minimized, minimized greatly.

         25                 So, I would urge you to, your
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          2  agencies, to look at overruns, why they occur, and I

          3  do believe that you will find that many of them are

          4  due to the flaws in the designs, which necessitates

          5  going back, and I would urge you to look at that

          6  when the statistical data is taking place.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry,

          9  Terri, we have just one more quick question, I'm

         10  sorry.

         11                 Joseph Addabbo of Queens.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

         13  very much for your patience. It's just a parting

         14  question to the committee that finding out that

         15  possibly the QBS system or process was used about 30

         16  years ago, and considering that obviously 30 years

         17  ago might have been a little bit of a different

         18  climate back then, do you have any information

         19  either with you, or could you get back to this

         20  Committee whether the QBS system or process was used

         21  roughly about 30 years ago or so?

         22                 MS. MATTHEWS: For the City?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: For the City.

         24  For this City.

         25                 MS. MATTHEWS: We'll find out.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I'd

          3  appreciate it. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Terri, thank you

          5  for your time. Thanks for coming in. We appreciate

          6  it. And we look forward to working with you.

          7                 MS. MATTHEWS: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          9                 MR. NEWMAN: Dr. Symeon Christodoulou,

         10  Frank McArdle, and Robert Peckar.

         11                 We're going to start the testimony

         12  with Mr. McArdle.

         13                 Please raise your right hands.

         14                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         15  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         16  whole truth, or nothing but the truth?

         17                 MR. McARDLE: I do.

         18                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: I do.

         19                 MR. PECKAR: I do.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         21  and affiliation for the record, and then, Mr.

         22  McArdle, please begin your testimony.

         23                 MR. McARDLE: My name is Francis X.

         24  McArdle. I am the Managing Director of the General

         25  Contractors Association of New York.
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          2                 MR. PECKAR: Good morning. I'm Robert

          3  S. Peckar. I'm General Counsel Emeritus of the New

          4  York Building Congress; General Counsel also to the

          5  New York Building Trades Employers Association, and

          6  a principal partner of Peckar and Abrahamson, a

          7  construction law firm.

          8                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: Good morning. My

          9  name is Symeon Christodoulou. I'm Assistant

         10  Professor at Polytechnic University, and I represent

         11  Dr. Griffis.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What university,

         13  please?

         14                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: Polytechnic in

         15  Brooklyn.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Polytechnic.

         17  Brooklyn. Brooklyn is in the house. Okay. Thank you.

         18                 Good morning. Good to see you again.

         19                 MR. McARDLE: Good morning, and good

         20  to see you.

         21                 As I said, my name is Frank McArdle.

         22  I'm the Managing Director of the General Contractors

         23  Association. We represent the heavy construction

         24  industry active in New York City. In my past life I

         25  was also a Commissioner of DEP, during the first
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          2  Koch Administration, at a time when we did use QBS,

          3  so I will be speaking to that issue.

          4                 You also do have in the room another

          5  former Commissioner of DEP sitting in the front row.

          6  Joe McGuff. So, if you would like to perhaps at a

          7  time ask him of his experiences, I think they will

          8  be the same. He served as my First Deputy.

          9                 I want to thank you for the

         10  opportunity that you've given me to come and talk

         11  about QBS and Intro. 45.

         12                 As I say in my testimony, it may seem

         13  strange to some to have a representative of

         14  Contractors speaking here today, but I think I can

         15  address some of the issues that have been raised

         16  here this morning.

         17                 Councilwoman Clarke, you know, raised

         18  a question as to what do contractors think, and I'm

         19  here to speak to that issue, and I can offer some

         20  views from my own past.

         21                 The construction industry has a big

         22  stake in QBS. It's not overt. We don't make any more

         23  money from QBS. If you choose it, we still believe

         24  and will defend the competitive bidding system for

         25  the selection of construction contractors, you can
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          2  select the lowest responsible contractor, but we

          3  have a stake in the quality of the plans and specs

          4  on which we bid and the quality of the research it

          5  has done before the project.

          6                 We have a stake in that just the way

          7  you have a stake in it. Because long after that

          8  design is finished, the community and its elected

          9  officials and the contractors will deal with that

         10  quality in the field. There is no question about

         11  that.

         12                 If we get bad plans and

         13  specifications, it means that we are spending more

         14  time in the bidding process, we're trying to guess

         15  at a lot of things that are not clear, and at the

         16  end of the day we probably have a project that is

         17  going to be disrupted and disruptive.

         18                 We believe in quality in the

         19  investment up front. From the contractor's point of

         20  view, particularly in the heavy construction

         21  industry, the water mains and sewers and sewage

         22  treatment plants, and air trains and other things

         23  that affect you every day in your communities, we

         24  want to have the money spent up front so that we

         25  don't have the delays and we don't have the change
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          2  orders.

          3                 The best project is the project that

          4  gets us in and out of your community, able to tell

          5  your community, your voters, that we will do this on

          6  a date certain, and we'll be out of your hair on a

          7  date certain. Because at the end of the day, that's

          8  what communities need to know.

          9                 If they know there will be

         10  disruption, but they know the end is coming to the

         11  disruption, they can work with the contractors

         12  within the community and contractors do that every

         13  day, but if the project suddenly shows that there

         14  has not been the money spent up front to

         15  investigate, that the design really isn't buildable,

         16  that something has gone wrong and the project stops

         17  and all the contractor can say is, I'm waiting for a

         18  design change, I'm waiting for the paperwork, and

         19  that is disruptive to everyone.

         20                 The critical issue here deals with

         21  some of the points that were raised by Ms. Matthews.

         22                 She thinks it's a bad thing to

         23  eliminate flexibility. We disagree. We think, quite

         24  frankly, in some areas it's very important to be

         25  inflexible. It's important to be inflexible about
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          2  quality. Your community, every community in this

          3  City, deserves the highest quality, the

          4  extraordinary quality. No community deserves it

          5  better for whatever reason. Everyone should have the

          6  best quality. No community should have to put up

          7  with the notion that when given a choice between

          8  quality and price, price is what they pick for the

          9  design quality in the engineering services.

         10                 On the other hand, we are equally

         11  inflexible in believing for construction contracts,

         12  the lowest responsible bidder should do the work.

         13  And that's really where the savings come.

         14                 QBS done well up front, with quality

         15  focused on the plans, produces a better solution to

         16  the problem, better coordinated drawings, better

         17  outcomes for everyone. A bad project means

         18  commissioners are wasting time. Trust me, I've

         19  wasted a lot of it in these exercises. We're wasting

         20  a lot of lawyers' time. We are diverting the

         21  scarcest resources to solve problems that could have

         22  been solved up front if the focus was on quality.

         23                 And let me tell you, quality is what

         24  I, as the former Commissioner, thought was the most

         25  important product when I selected designers. I
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          2  believe Mr. McGuff supports that view just as

          3  strongly. I think if you ask every Commissioner,

          4  other than those who are bound by their structure of

          5  government, that's what they'd say today, quality is

          6  what's important. Spend the money up front and you

          7  will pay us less. But we will be happier when you

          8  pay us less, because when there's a change order, we

          9  don't make money on change orders. It delays us. It

         10  holds us up. We can't move people. We don't want

         11  projects that delay.

         12                 As I say in my testimony, quite often

         13  we have two or three projects lined up. We're going

         14  to take the crews from the first project, move them

         15  to the second and third. But if we can't do that

         16  because we're sitting on a project with a bad

         17  design, somebody didn't investigate what they could

         18  have known up front, we're wasting our time, it's as

         19  simple as that.

         20                 That's why we're the most important

         21  among the construction community, but second to you,

         22  in knowing why quality matters.

         23                 One observation. Ms. Matthews is a

         24  lawyer. The City does not bid out its legal

         25  services. When it has to choose things, it chooses
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          2  quality, because it knows in the field of law, as

          3  those of you who are lawyers know, quality matters.

          4  It is different. There is no question about that.

          5                 We believe, and I speak for the

          6  estimaters in my industry, that the best quality

          7  plans and specifications come when the agency has a

          8  focus on quality. When you make price a criteria,

          9  everyone who is successful knows at the end of the

         10  day price is what matters. So they'll give you the

         11  best technical scores because they know that doesn't

         12  matter. Because at the end of the day it's price

         13  that's going to make the difference, and when you

         14  drive price down, eventually you drive quality out

         15  of the process. So, that's why you have to push on

         16  behalf of your constituents for quality.

         17                 Ms. Matthews raises the question of

         18  why do it now. There is no better time to do it now,

         19  because in a fiscal crisis, the biggest dollars are

         20  wasted with the construction contractors. Now you

         21  want to do it because you don't have those dollars

         22  to waste. It's as simple as that.

         23                 That's why we support Intro. 45.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. PECKAR: Good morning. I'm Robert

          3  Peckar, and as I told you, I'm speaking on behalf of

          4  New York Building Congress, which is the umbrella

          5  organization that represents the interests of the

          6  contractors, the subcontractors, the designers, the

          7  real estate developers, who organize labor, everyone

          8  who participates in the process. And the building

          9  trades employers association, which represents all

         10  of the unionized contractors in New York City, in

         11  conjunction with the Building Trades Council,

         12  working cooperatively to try to improve the industry

         13  in the City of New York.

         14                 After listening to Frank McArdle's

         15  remarks, which is a very difficult act to follow, as

         16  you can see, I think I'd like to limit my remarks to

         17  what I can add to this discussion, as having been a

         18  construction lawyer practicing in the City of New

         19  York for 30 years, primarily representing

         20  contractors. General contractors.

         21                 I agree with Frank. I don't have

         22  architects or engineers, except on the rarest of

         23  occasions. I'm not here to speak out of their self

         24  interest or out of mine. And what may seem amazing

         25  to you is how the contracting component of this
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          2  industry comes to you and says we don't want the

          3  change orders, we don't want the delays, we don't

          4  want the overruns, because the truth of the matter

          5  is, pulling the money for those out of the City of

          6  New York is torture.

          7                 So, there's no benefit in having a

          8  project that has huge problems, so that you can have

          9  huge claims for huge amounts of money, because

         10  pulling that money is torture and it usually means

         11  you're trying very hard to capture what you've lost,

         12  not to make an increased profit or anything like

         13  that.

         14                 There is no question, I can tell you,

         15  from 30 years of having done this, there's no

         16  question that there's a direct correlation between

         17  poor design and cost overruns on a project. It is

         18  not the only element that causes cost overruns and

         19  our segment of the industry is not sometimes without

         20  its blame as well, but when you start with a project

         21  that is designed poorly where there are ambiguities

         22  in the documents, where the various engineers and

         23  designers who participate have not coordinated their

         24  design properly, where you've got a lack of clarity,

         25  or where you have essential design errors, you're
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          2  guaranteed to have cost overruns, and more likely

          3  than not you're guaranteed to have litigation as

          4  well.

          5                 And the way the City and the City

          6  agencies avoid litigation, and avoid huge delays and

          7  avoid all of this, is by doing the practical thing

          8  for which they're to be commended, which is they sit

          9  down with the contractors and they try to work it

         10  out so that you can solve the problem and move on,

         11  and when they do that, that typically results in

         12  change orders, it results in a matter of cost

         13  reimbursement, and it amounts in the project taking

         14  on a whole different demeanor than it had when it

         15  starts.

         16                 So, there's a tremendous benefit for

         17  the entire industry, and certainly for the City of

         18  New York and all the people who are so concerned, I

         19  don't think there's anyone in this room who doesn't

         20  have a concern about the fiscal situation. It's a

         21  tremendous benefit to know, the first thing you're

         22  doing when you're starting the ground plan, the

         23  design, from which everything else will flow, is

         24  that you are choosing firms, and only those firms,

         25  who come with proper qualifications, and that you're
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          2  choosing the best, that you're not going for price

          3  as the driving force.

          4                 And I would suggest, and I certainly

          5  think Ms. Matthews presented herself very well this

          6  morning, presented cogent discussions on behalf of

          7  her agencies, but I would suggest to you,

          8  notwithstanding what it is that she said, in the

          9  fiscal environment we have now, the inclination of

         10  agencies absent Intro. 45, will be to go to the

         11  lowest price, not to go to the highest quality,

         12  because the lowest price is what gives you instant

         13  satisfaction, and then you have to worry about where

         14  you come down at the end of the day.

         15                 Just by way of example, assume you

         16  take a project and there's a $30 million

         17  construction price, the design component is not the

         18  largest piece of that by any stretch of the

         19  imagination, but if you have major cost overruns,

         20  major delays, major problems, major design problems,

         21  the implications are going to be on the construction

         22  side where the costs are huge, not on the design

         23  side where the costs are not so huge.

         24                 One post script, if I may? I know

         25  this is not in Intro. 45, but I would like to urge
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          2  your Committee to consider the inclusion of

          3  construction management services in your bill as

          4  well.

          5                 Construction managers provide

          6  professional service, just as architects and

          7  engineers do. They're not people who build it, they

          8  are the people who are the consultants to your

          9  agencies, who are hired to help pull together these

         10  projects successfully, and they, too, have quite an

         11  effect on the ultimate outcome of the cost of the

         12  job, and I would suggest to you, for many of the

         13  same reasons, you might want to favorably consider

         14  amending your bill to include construction

         15  management within the QBS.

         16                 We do not want you to include general

         17  contractors or special contractors. I agree with Mr.

         18  McArdle, we like the competitive bidding system.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you.

         21                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: Thank you. Good

         22  morning. My name is Symeon Christodoulou. I'm a

         23  Professor at Polytechnic University. I wasn't

         24  scheduled to be here today. My colleague was

         25  supposed to give the testimony.
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          2                 What I'll do is I'll read a couple of

          3  paragraphs and I'll submit the testimony for your

          4  records.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Very good.

          6                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: "Ladies and

          7  gentlemen, my name is Bud Griffis, Vice President

          8  and Dean of Engineering and Applied Science at

          9  Polytechnic University in the City of New York.

         10                 While a Professor in the Department

         11  of Civil Engineering from 2000 to 2001, my

         12  colleague, Professor Symeon Christodoulou and I

         13  undertook a study on behalf of the New York Building

         14  Foundation on QBS. I would like to report on that

         15  study in this testimony.

         16                 In addition, I testified before this

         17  body in 1999 concerning the same subject and

         18  elaborated on my experience with the 'Brooks Bill'

         19  while I was District Engineer and Contracting

         20  Officer for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers New

         21  York district from which I retired as a Colonel in

         22  1986. I mention that so that you will understand

         23  that I am a proponent of QBS for professional

         24  services.

         25                 Over the past two decades, I have
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          2  witnessed several factors associated with the lack

          3  of QBS as practiced by agencies of the City of New

          4  York. Many agencies will say that they practice QBS.

          5  However, they ask for the technical proposal and

          6  price proposal at the same time. If one sees the

          7  price proposal before selecting the top competitive

          8  consultants, then QBS cannot work.

          9                 Most of the time the selection group

         10  will pick the consultant with the lowest price.

         11                 It has been my experience that

         12  selecting the lowest bidder results in an inferior

         13  product. Why? There is a tendency for the consultant

         14  to assign lesser experienced personnel to the

         15  project to save dollars. The consultant may put less

         16  effort into the project. He or she may leave hard

         17  decisions for the owner that a more experienced lead

         18  project person might make. And the project may not

         19  be completed. I have heard it said that the design

         20  is complete when the fee is gone.

         21                 Furthermore, the QBS selection method

         22  was documented in past literature (the case of

         23  Maryland vs. Florida) to result in about one-half

         24  the cost of selection and design, and about one-half

         25  the administrative cost, while delivering projects
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          2  in about three-quarters the time of the (apparently)

          3  price-dominated 'quality and price' selection

          4  method.

          5                 As of the end of 2001, a total of 41

          6  states had adopted the 'Brooks Act' as the basis for

          7  procuring A/E services. The widespread adoption of

          8  QBS is a testament to the belief that QBS has

          9  advantages over competitive bidding and that the

         10  method should be the preferred method for the

         11  procurement of A/E services.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  provide this testimony. I am sure that it is in the

         14  best interest of the City of New York to adopt a QBS

         15  policy."

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         18  you, all of you, for coming and giving testimony

         19  concerning this very important, and with that, I'm

         20  going to open the floor to my colleagues.

         21                 Good. Then let me ask a couple of

         22  questions. Professor, you talked about that 41

         23  states and our testimony and our opening statement

         24  we said 42; is it now 42 or is it 41? Who is right?

         25                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: It's close enough,
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          2  right?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We're close

          4  enough. But, you know, when you talk about design, a

          5  little fraction could make that building go like

          6  that.

          7                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: The last number I

          8  had was 41.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         10                 Now, you said you've been in the

         11  field, you've testified about this particular matter

         12  in 1999, you and the other professor that you

         13  referred to in your testimony, you did a study, who

         14  paid for that study? Sometimes I hear studies, oh,

         15  yeah, and then it's paid by the industry, and, you

         16  know, you get the result that you paid for.

         17                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: Let me just

         18  correct something. He testified in 1999.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         20                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: He was part of the

         21  testimony in 1999. The study was done a year and a

         22  half ago, it started a year and a half ago. It was

         23  funded by the New York Building Foundation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who was the

         25  New York Building Foundation?
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          2                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: Who is it?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, who is it?

          4                 MR. PECKAR: I can answer it.

          5                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: Go ahead.

          6                 MR. PECKAR: The New York Building

          7  Foundation is an outgrowth of the New York Building

          8  Congress. It really is funded by all of the industry

          9  associations who participate in this umbrella

         10  organization that contributed monies to create a

         11  foundation to do objective and independent research.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, I assume

         13  that if I'm in the business and I join this

         14  association, I mean Terri Matthews said the City of

         15  New York procurement process, competitive bidding,

         16  you know, so basically they put you all in a room

         17  and you put your best bid forward; why would the

         18  industry want to have a process where, you know, we

         19  don't have that open competitiveness. Why? Can you

         20  explain why not? Any one of you? Because as I said,

         21  I'm a layperson, I don't know the industry, so tell

         22  me, why wouldn't you want the competitive process

         23  that the City of New York is talking about?

         24                 MR. McARDLE: Remember, it is still a

         25  competitive process.

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          3                 MR. McARDLE: But the criteria that is

          4  used to make the selection is the criteria of

          5  quality, as opposed to the criteria of price. When

          6  you pick a construction contractor, you want the

          7  lowest responsible bidder to get that job, but the

          8  presumption is the best quality has gone in. This is

          9  still competitive.

         10                 When I was the DEP Commissioner, Mr.

         11  McGuff as well, we made many selections in

         12  procurement and engineering services. People would

         13  submit proposals to the agency. They would be rated

         14  on the basis of the quality of the selection against

         15  criteria developed before the process, so that

         16  everyone knew how you should rate and rank these

         17  proposals, at that point when I was Commissioner at

         18  DEP, the highest ranking proposals went through a

         19  second selection process by senior engineers, not in

         20  the division that would use them, so that you would

         21  eliminate any internal biases in that area, and then

         22  the final selection was a ranking of three or four.

         23  You would then negotiate on the basis of cost,

         24  profit and allowable expenses with the highest

         25  quality firm, the firm that people believe, and not
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          2  just one person but panels of people believe, would

          3  produce the best product for the City of New York.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And that's QBS

          5  that you're referring to?

          6                 MR. McARDLE: That's QBS. That's the

          7  focus. That's what we did.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you said

          9  that was in place when you were the Commissioner?

         10                 MR. McARDLE: That was in place, the

         11  Comptroller's Office had a series of criteria for

         12  allowable cost, that was actually reducing what was

         13  allowable against the federal government. So it

         14  wasn't as if by picking quality we were giving away

         15  the store.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm scratching

         17  my head. If that's what we were doing before, and it

         18  worked, and it was producing the most responsible

         19  bidder, as far as the selection process.

         20                 MR. McARDLE: Absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It didn't reduce

         22  competition.

         23                 MR. McARDLE: Not at all.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then if you have

         25  any idea, and if you don't, it's okay, why did the

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  City change?

          3                 MR. McARDLE: Because someone came up

          4  with the great notion that somehow you could price a

          5  professional service and get the same service for a

          6  lower price.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you disagree

          8  with that?

          9                 MR. McARDLE: Absolutely. You do not,

         10  I would suggest to you, believe that you would want

         11  to pick almost any service that affects you or your

         12  family on the basis of price alone. If you have the

         13  ability to select something, okay, you've got so

         14  many dollars, you're not going to kind of save money

         15  on something that's important to your children or to

         16  you in the area of professional services, you're

         17  going to pick the best you can afford. Absolutely.

         18  And I do that every day.

         19                 Now, the key here is you have

         20  competition, it's the best quality, that's what's

         21  important.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, now, I

         23  want to know, because it seems as though the

         24  industry has come together and saying this is the

         25  way we're going to do business, that we prefer to do
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          2  business with the City of New York, and even though

          3  we all know that it's still competitive, but it's

          4  going to produce the most responsible design and

          5  engineer company, architectural firm or

          6  construction, it doesn't matter. It's still going to

          7  be competitive, but it's going to be real

          8  responsible so we don't have, as you indicated,

          9  these delays and what have you, that cost everybody

         10  time, energy, money, litigation, what have you, and

         11  so forth.

         12                 And who do you represent?

         13                 MR. PECKAR: I represent the Building

         14  Congress, which is the umbrella organization for all

         15  the members of the construction of real estate

         16  development industry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And all of them

         18  agree on this process?

         19                 MR. PECKAR: Absolutely. Absolutely.

         20                 Could I speak to the question you

         21  asked a moment ago?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Before you do

         23  that, I'd like to introduce my colleague, before he

         24  knocks me upside my head. John Liu, the great

         25  Council Member from Queens. John Liu.
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          2                 MR. PECKAR: You asked about the

          3  effect on price competitiveness.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          5                 MR. PECKAR: And I think there's a

          6  misunderstanding in respect to that. The QBS

          7  process, particularly what you have in Intro. 45, as

          8  I read it and understand it, is that after you've

          9  selected the most qualified proposer, you do sit

         10  down and you have a discussion at that point about

         11  price. You have competitiveness between the three

         12  proposers, the four proposers, the ten proposers,

         13  simply to be listed as being the most qualified.

         14  There's competition for that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MR. PECKAR: Once they're selected as

         17  the number one, that doesn't give them the green

         18  light to come in and say I'm now going to charge an

         19  extra $100,000 because I've got it - they don't have

         20  it.

         21                 You can be sure every City agency

         22  will do what they already do, which is to have a

         23  ball park idea of what those professional services

         24  should charge, and then what they'll do is they'll

         25  sit down and negotiate, and the first, most
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          2  qualified, has to worry in that negotiation. And if

          3  the second most qualified isn't that far behind on

          4  qualification, that if they don't negotiate

          5  realistically with the City, the City has the right

          6  under Intro. 45 to move on to the second. So, where

          7  is the absence of competitiveness? I don't think

          8  there is any.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Professor, have

         10  you done any survey about how all of these other

         11  states feel that their QBS versus the non-QBS system

         12  that they have in place has either saved their state

         13  money, increased the quality, or has it been worse?

         14  Have you ever done any analysis on that?

         15                 DR. CHRISTODOULOU: Yes, we did.

         16  Actually there was a publication out a few years ago

         17  comparing Maryland and Florida, and I can give you

         18  the information.

         19                 They compared both states and they

         20  quantified the savings, both in time and money, and

         21  I have the number, it's part of the report we

         22  published. If you want I can give you the

         23  information.

         24                 About one-third savings in time, in

         25  one-half the cost of selection and design.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: My counsel says

          3  that we have that and we're looking at that.

          4                 So, let me just ask then the

          5  question, in your opinion, Commissioner -- I'm still

          6  calling you Commissioner. I still call every mayor,

          7  who has ever been the mayor of New York mayor,

          8  because when you're the mayor of New York City, I

          9  don't care who you are, you deserve to be called

         10  honorable title of mayor for the rest of your life,

         11  let me tell you that.

         12                 So, Commissioner, former

         13  Commissioner, now you said you had QBS back then,

         14  how long did you have it for?

         15                 MR. McARDLE: For all the time I was

         16  Commissioner, which was for four years, and I think

         17  Mr. McGuff had it for four years, and it just was

         18  the pattern of selection.

         19                 Look, I bought at that time the

         20  largest A and E contract the City had ever

         21  purchased.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What's A and E?

         23                 MR. McARDLE: Architect and Engineer,

         24  sorry.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.
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          2                 MR. McARDLE: But the largest contract

          3  which we purchased for sludge services, and let me

          4  tell you, we picked the best, we put incentives in

          5  the contract for performance. We had a lot of

          6  competition for that contract, because at the time I

          7  think it was almost a $30 million contract, which

          8  back in those days in the middle ages was a very

          9  large contract. It was all of 1980. The point was

         10  that we then had to negotiate with the firm, Camp

         11  Press and McKee, the Comptroller had allowable

         12  expenses, they had to understand that things they

         13  might have charged to other clients were not

         14  chargeable to the City of New York, and they had to

         15  understand that there were differences in working

         16  for the City of New York, but at the end of the day,

         17  we needed the best. We were under a consent decree,

         18  we had to produce the designs, so that we would not

         19  be found in breach of our consent order, which

         20  brought penalties, if I recall of $25,000 a day, and

         21  you get that by getting the best plans up front, and

         22  that's what we did.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Sears, and then

         25  Council Member Stewart.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just to

          3  comment, I really want to thank you, Mr. Chair,

          4  because you've really provided people here today

          5  really expert testimony, and I have to say those who

          6  have to do the job, and it is so refreshing to hear

          7  how you do your job and what the problems are and

          8  not from sitting at a desk.

          9                 So, I really thank you, because and

         10  you're correct, Mr. Peckar, Intro. 45 does exactly

         11  what you said it does.

         12                 MR. McARDLE: That's why we are

         13  supporting it. I have members who can choose, and

         14  they choose every time they have a set of bids would

         15  they want to work for the City of New York? Would

         16  they want to work with State DOT? Do they want to

         17  work for the Port Authority, do they want to work

         18  for the MTA components, the TA. QBS is an attitude

         19  about getting things done, and we want to work with

         20  the agencies with the right attitude.

         21                 When we see that at the highest

         22  levels the City is willing to sacrifice quality for

         23  price, that tells my members something. And if

         24  they've got a choice, they don't go for the jobs

         25  that have been designed with the least quality in
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          2  them. They want them with the best quality.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dr. Stewart.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just want

          6  to follow-up on something that you said awhile ago

          7  when you were commissioner.

          8                 You said that you used the QBS

          9  system, and if you use that system and you make that

         10  choice of selecting maybe the first ten best

         11  qualified engineers, so for design or whatever,

         12  after you have done that, you would have had that in

         13  the database, and that means every single project

         14  that comes up, similar to the one that you may have

         15  awarded before, you may go back to the same database

         16  and you would not have the general public to look

         17  at.

         18                 MR. McARDLE: No, you misunderstand.

         19                 When we have a proposal, a project to

         20  execute, we would invite everyone to come in and

         21  propose. And I will tell you, there were firms that

         22  chose not to propose because they did not have a

         23  history of quality with the agency, okay?

         24                 But we were open, and we did not

         25  limit it. It wasn't as if we had a list of people we
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          2  preferred. Quite frankly, we wanted the fresh views.

          3  One of the issues that hasn't been talked about here

          4  today is the whole question of emerging firms, okay?

          5  If you pick on price, you pick the firms with the

          6  most ability to sustain the work at the lowest

          7  price. That means they've got deep pockets, they've

          8  got low overhead costs, they're able to do it for

          9  less. Quite frankly, an emerging firm may not have a

         10  lot of resources, but a lot of great ideas, may rank

         11  high on quality, they can't sustain the lowest

         12  price. They've got to pay their people every week.

         13  They don't have the cash in the pockets.

         14                 You don't provide the money up front

         15  that allows them to compete on the same basis, so

         16  when you pick low price, you actually discourage

         17  small emerging firms, of whatever talent and ability

         18  from getting into this business on the same basis as

         19  a big production firm, and the big production firms,

         20  knowing that they've got two or three people to pick

         21  from, they know they can assign the lowest quality

         22  person and get away with it because price is what's

         23  king. It doesn't work that way.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I tend to

         25  agree with you, but when I think about construction,
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          2  the problem that we have with construction, take,

          3  for example, with SCA and we just have just a few

          4  major firms that gets all the contracts, all the

          5  time, and now we have for -- the cost of building a

          6  school is five times that it will cost outside of

          7  the City of New York.

          8                 So, I'm saying there might be a

          9  concern for looking at when you choose those quality

         10  designers, that you have maybe ten people and you

         11  may continue to have those ten people, and because

         12  you have dealt with them before, you just continue

         13  to work with them and no other.

         14                 MR. McARDLE: That can be a problem.

         15                 But let me suggest to you where that

         16  really becomes a problem is when you've got big jobs

         17  and small jobs, the big firms always go after the

         18  big jobs, because the small firms don't have the

         19  financial resources or don't want to kind of put all

         20  their eggs in one basket. You know where the real

         21  problem is? When the big firms realize they can take

         22  a bunch of small jobs, that look just like one big

         23  job when you put them together and they've got the

         24  lowest cost and they get selected. They really get

         25  frozen out of this.
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          2                 On the construction side it's quite

          3  different. We have real turnover. I mean, I looked

          4  at this because we did some ads, and back in 19 -- I

          5  think it was 1953, 50 years ago, my association was

          6  just about the same size it is today. It had about

          7  106 contractor members, we have about 110 today. But

          8  of those 106 back in 1953, there's only nine of them

          9  really left in the business today. All the rest of

         10  them are firms that have come into this marketplace

         11  and we're all doing public works since then. So, in

         12  our business there's turnover, new firms come in

         13  because of competitive bidding.

         14                 It doesn't happen on the professional

         15  side.

         16                 MR. PECKAR: Dr. Stewart, could I

         17  respond to your question very briefly?

         18                 If you are as concerned as you

         19  apparently are about school construction, and

         20  particularly the experiences with the SCA, I think

         21  you'll find that from the growth, from the initial

         22  birth of the SCA until today, we could spend hours

         23  here and we're not going to, but from the initial

         24  growth from the SCA until today, there's been a

         25  dramatic shift away from quality in every aspect of
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          2  it, from the top to the bottom, from the designers

          3  to the contractors, to what you have today.

          4                 That has more to do I think with the

          5  culture that evolves in the SCA and their practices,

          6  rather than necessarily the procurement process that

          7  they use. But right now I can tell you that the best

          8  contractors of New York will not get near one of

          9  those jobs. And the best engineers and architects in

         10  New York don't want to get near those jobs.

         11                 And right now, the best construction

         12  managers of New York don't want to get near those

         13  jobs. And, so, you can see that unless the City uses

         14  the best practices, what happens is the industry

         15  goes to other places to work so they can get good

         16  jobs, reliable set of plans, good people to work

         17  with and opportunity to make a reasonable amount of

         18  money and perform a good job.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20                 Thank you for coming this morning to

         21  give testimony.

         22                 MR. McARDLE: Could I add one last

         23  point?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: One last point.

         25                 MR. McARDLE: Which is important to
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          2  all of you.

          3                 Ms. Matthews talked about how this

          4  would somehow be wrong because we buy a lot of other

          5  services with price being important, and she talked

          6  about senior citizens and youth services in that

          7  way.

          8                 If you have been reading the

          9  newspaper lately about what New York State has done

         10  with those who are least able to help themselves,

         11  they've chosen on price, they put them in places

         12  where neither you nor I would want to be placed

         13  ourselves or have any of our relatives placed. If

         14  anything is there you want that picked on quality

         15  because the investment on quality is what gives

         16  purpose and meaning to the services to those

         17  people.  Keep that in mind. It's not just for us.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 MR. McARDLE: Thank you.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN: Lou Coletti.

         21                 Please raise your right hand.

         22                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         23  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         24  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. COLETTI: I do.
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          2                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

          3  and affiliation for the record and begin your

          4  testimony.

          5                 MR. COLETTI: My name is Louis

          6  Coletti, I'm the President of the Building Trades

          7  Employers Association. We're an organization that

          8  represents 24 contractor associations and over 1,500

          9  construction managers, contractors and

         10  subcontractors doing work in the City of New York.

         11                 I come here this morning in full

         12  support of Intro. 145 and the QBS system.

         13                 I'm not going to repeat many of the

         14  reasons that you already heard for supporting the

         15  system. I would like to endorse Mr. Peckar's

         16  suggestion the bill be amended to include

         17  construction managers.

         18                 Under New York City and New York

         19  State Procurement Law, the professional services

         20  classification includes a selection of architects,

         21  engineers and construction managers and I think it

         22  should be consistent.

         23                 I think when the City hires

         24  construction managers, and it doesn't do so in every

         25  case, those decisions should be based on the same
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          2  criteria in the selection of architects and

          3  engineers.

          4                 I heard Ms. Matthews' testimony about

          5  the City's concern of lack of flexibility, and I

          6  guess we're indeed fortunate in these tough times in

          7  having a Mayor who has been a successful

          8  businessman, and also an engineer, he graduated from

          9  John Hopkins, and I think that the City is taking a

         10  very close look at changing and what changes need to

         11  be made in the entire procurement process, and

         12  that's critical if you're going to be able to

         13  deliver any public project on schedule and on time.

         14                 But let me suggest to you one of the

         15  problems that's created when you give any

         16  administration flexibility, okay? They'll tell you

         17  that we didn't look at price til the end, but that's

         18  exactly what they looked like (sic). There's so much

         19  flexibility that they get away from the legislative

         20  intent that you meant when you passed any particular

         21  piece of legislation.

         22                 For six years I worked for one of the

         23  City's largest construction management companies,

         24  and we did work for the City, competed for it, and

         25  when we didn't win jobs, we would go back to the
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          2  agency and say, you know, could you give me a

          3  briefing, and what happened with our proposal. You

          4  had the best team, you had the best qualified, but

          5  your price was too high.

          6                 Well, why didn't you tell us that?

          7  Why didn't you give us an opportunity to come in and

          8  negotiate? Because, unfortunately, from my

          9  membership, and they'll probably kill me for saying

         10  this, but we're probably an industry that undercuts

         11  ourself better than any other industry, and I can

         12  tell you that the competitive nature of my members,

         13  if you tell someone, well, jeese, you've got two

         14  proposals that are equal, and, you know, you guys

         15  have an eight percent fee and they only have six

         16  percent, they'll drop it to five percent. But I

         17  can't emphasize enough the reliance that you must

         18  have in doing any project on quality.

         19                 There is a relationship between the

         20  quality of the design drawings, the scope of the

         21  design drawings, and the quality and the speed of

         22  the construction and the cost you will pay. Will it

         23  cost more money to hire quality design

         24  professionals? Absolutely.

         25                 But it's going to cost you a lot less
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          2  if you bid those services from a price standpoint,

          3  because you're going to pay through the change

          4  orders at the end. And I respectfully suggest to

          5  you, you're much better paying for quality up front,

          6  because that will reduce the cost over the length of

          7  the program.

          8                 There's been a lot of discussion

          9  about the School Construction Authority and before I

         10  say that, let me thank, Mr. Chairman, you and the

         11  members of the Committee, not only for having this

         12  hearing, but for the level of your participation and

         13  questioning on this subject. It's too often in our

         14  industry where not a lot of people pay attention to

         15  this, and the Council members of this Committee have

         16  sat here through all of this testimony, and I want

         17  to thank you, because at this point in time, in our

         18  view, there is no more important subject matter,

         19  given the fiscal crisis that the City faces, the

         20  lack of construction that we will have in the

         21  industry. Many of my firms have no intention -- if

         22  you give a strong mark, give them a choice to go

         23  into a strong private market, and a public market,

         24  many of my firms would not and do not bid City work.

         25  For all of the reasons that you have heard before.
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          2                 And while we're with the

          3  Administration, working with them on fixing those

          4  processes, I think it's important that (a) you play

          5  an equal role in that, and (b) that there's an

          6  understanding of how you frame the solution.

          7  Discretion. Everybody says let's give the owner

          8  discretion and that's great. Well, we were talking

          9  about, many of you were talking about school

         10  projects, and more years than I'd like to remember

         11  ago, I happened to be involved in writing the

         12  legislation that created the New York City School

         13  Construction Authority, and that was the idea, let's

         14  give them discretion.

         15                 From a procurement framework, it is

         16  probably one of the best systems you have. The

         17  problem is nobody utilizes it.

         18                 Councilman, you asked about cost

         19  overruns at the school, but what can you do from a

         20  design standpoint? First of all, get rid of the

         21  requirement that 40 percent of the design work be

         22  done in-house.

         23                 Second of all, two years ago, and I

         24  think you would consider it a highly unusual step,

         25  myself and Ed Malloy who is the President of the

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Building and Construction Trades Council, actually

          3  appeared before Assemblyman Sander's Education

          4  Committee to oppose additional funding for school

          5  construction, because we said two years ago you

          6  don't have enough money in the budget to build what

          7  you have now.

          8                 They weren't cost overruns,

          9  Councilman. They were poorly-designed projects, the

         10  scopes weren't deep enough, projects were put in

         11  that didn't have sites.

         12                 If you compare a report that former

         13  Chancellor Harold Levy put out, comparing the

         14  estimates that were done by the SCA once they got

         15  that level of detail, compared to the construction

         16  cost, you'll find that very few of them had cost

         17  overruns. But when you compare the original budget

         18  estimate in the Board of Education's capital budget

         19  with what happened, that's where you ran into cost

         20  overruns.

         21                 I said publicly to the newspapers and

         22  I would suggest to you again today, they are not

         23  cost overruns. We are an industry that sometimes

         24  gets tagged with greedy contractors who put money in

         25  their pockets. Trust me, there are enough of them,
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          2  but there are enough good contractors that try to do

          3  things the right way.

          4                 And I would also encourage you, today

          5  you're considering a piece of legislation that deals

          6  with the design end of the process. I would also ask

          7  you to consider holding hearings later on in the

          8  year on the construction end, because I agree with

          9  my colleagues about the lowest responsible bidder,

         10  support, however, I would suggest to you that that

         11  language, the selection of the lowest responsible

         12  bidder, is an oxymoron, again, because of the same

         13  philosophy that's used on the design side, whenever

         14  you give any bureaucrat the ability to say I'm going

         15  to look at price, that's what they'll look at and

         16  they'll justify everything else back to you.

         17                 The City does not have the resources

         18  now to take a look at the lowest responsible bidder.

         19  The City doesn't have the authority to take a

         20  contractor they think is non-responsible and say,

         21  you know what? We're going to the second person on

         22  the list. You know why? Because immediately a

         23  lawsuit is filed, the project gets held up. So, you

         24  have to be probably in too many case, not every

         25  case, one of the more incompetent contractors if you
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          2  don't get selected on the low bid, because if my

          3  members bid a job, half of the free world knows what

          4  our costs are, our labor cost, we have a prevailing

          5  wage law which is a whole different issue that no

          6  one enforces. So, what happens, a contractor comes

          7  in, bids ten, 15, 20 percent under, what they know

          8  competent contractors' costs are, get the award.

          9  Half way through the project say, well, gee, this

         10  wasn't in the scope of the contract. Why? Because

         11  you probably didn't hire the right architect or

         12  engineer to do the entire scope that is needed on

         13  the project to start with.

         14                 I mean, no architect or engineer is

         15  going to risk their license and not do a complete

         16  professional job. But they're also not going to

         17  spend 2,000 hours on a drawing, if the City has said

         18  to them we're only going to compensate you for 1,000

         19  hours.

         20                 So, all of that leads to longer

         21  costs, the hiring of contractors that shouldn't be

         22  doing business in the job, and the hiring of

         23  architect or engineering firms that are based on

         24  something that is second or third on the criteria

         25  price when it should be quality.

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 So, I thank you for the opportunity

          3  to testify this morning, and I'd be willing to take

          4  any potential questions you have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

          6  coming to testify, and I appreciate you looking at

          7  our proposed legislation and wanting to make an

          8  amendment to the legislation, and we, the Counsel

          9  and the staff and the Committee members will look at

         10  that and strongly consider it.

         11                 How long have you been in the

         12  business?

         13                 MR. COLETTI: Fifteen years.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you have an

         15  opinion as to the other states as far as QBS, and

         16  why New York City will not move in that direction?

         17                 MR. COLETTI: I don't know of any

         18  studies. I think by virtue of the fact that 42 other

         19  states have moved in the direction is evidence in

         20  and of itself that we should be moving in the same

         21  direction.

         22                 Again, I hate to talk about

         23  contractors because that's who I represent, but I do

         24  know that there are studies that exist that

         25  recommend changes in the lowest responsible bidder
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          2  law. It starts with the organized crime task force

          3  report of about ten years ago, the Institute of

          4  Public Administration. It's just common sense. Talk

          5  to a private developer. Why does the private

          6  developer when they hiring an architect or engineer,

          7  their first criteria is quality, because that

          8  individual is borrowing hundreds of millions of

          9  dollars for a project.

         10                 Yes, cost is a criteria, but they

         11  want to make sure that they get the best design

         12  drawing that they can for their project, select the

         13  right construction manager and move that project and

         14  complete it as fast as they can.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

         16  for coming in.

         17                 MR. COLETTI: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We appreciate

         19  it.

         20                 I'm sorry, Dr. Stewart?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Am I to say

         22  that if there's a selection and the number one

         23  selection did not get the bid, did not do the job,

         24  the second or the third person who will do the job,

         25  there can be litigation that can hold up that
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          2  process?

          3                 MR. COLETTI: Design and construction

          4  there's always litigation. It's more prevalent on

          5  the contractors' side than it is on the design side,

          6  I would think. But that's what's the strength of

          7  this piece of legislation on the QBS is that the

          8  criteria -- you picked and ranked the firms

          9  according to their qualifications. You then begin an

         10  individual negotiation. If you can't reach a

         11  conclusion with firm number one, then you go to firm

         12  number two. But your criteria is clear, it's based

         13  on quality and you're negotiating the price. It's

         14  the exact process that's used in the private sector.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That's great.

         16  Then it means then that when we go through the QBS

         17  system, you continue that system instead of having

         18  less overrun in terms of cost, because we would now

         19  have the better qualified people with, you know, up

         20  front, instead of someone who bid this in price.

         21                 MR. COLETTI: Well, I would suggest to

         22  you that's only half of the equation. And I don't

         23  want to take today's hearing to discuss that, but I

         24  think if you move forward with this piece of

         25  legislation, it's natural partner is a revision of
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          2  the lowest responsible bidder.

          3                 If you don't do both, you're only

          4  going to accomplish half of what you're trying to

          5  achieve today, because probably most of the firms

          6  won't have the capability to carry out the better

          7  design projects that you now have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 Mr. Newman.

         11                 MR. NEWMAN: John Hennessy; Leevi

         12  Kiil; Michael Francese.

         13                 Please raise your right hands,

         14  gentlemen.

         15                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         16  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         17  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         18                 MR. HENNESSY: I do.

         19                 MR. KIIL: I do.

         20                 MR. FRANCESE: I do.

         21                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         22  and affiliation for the record, and Mr. Hennessy,

         23  will you begin your testimony?

         24                 MR. HENNESSY: I am John Hennessy. I'm

         25  the President of the Metro Chapter of the New York
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          2  Association of Consulting Engineers, and I'm also

          3  Chairman of Syska Hennessy Group.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Would you pull

          5  the mic over a little bit more to you?

          6                 MR. HENNESSY: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          8                 MR. KIIL: My name is Leevi Kiil, I'm

          9  the President of the American Institute of

         10  Architects New York Chapter, and Chairman and CEO of

         11  HLW International.

         12                 MR. FRANCESE: My name is Mike

         13  Francese. I'm a senior vice president with Parsons

         14  Brinckerhoff, an engineering firm here in New York

         15  City. Also a member of the Board of the New York

         16  Association of Consulting Engineers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Board for what?

         18                 MR. FRANCESE: The New York

         19  Association of Consulting Engineers.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Consulting

         21  Engineers, okay. Just pull the mic a little closer

         22  to you so I can hear you clearly. I don't want to

         23  miss any of your testimony. Okay, who is going to

         24  begin first?

         25                 MR. HENNESSY: Thank you. I'm going to
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          2  read the first part of my testimony that I've handed

          3  in, since I don't want to repeat some of the same

          4  points that have been made. I think it's made well

          5  in the written part of the testimony. Let me make

          6  some comments to begin with.

          7                 I'm John Hennessy, and I'm president

          8  and Board member of the Metro Chapter of the New

          9  York Association of Consulting Engineers, and a past

         10  president of the Statewide New York Association for

         11  Consulting Engineers Organization.

         12                 I serve on the board of the executive

         13  committee of the New York Building Congress, and the

         14  past Chairman of the Congress, and I serve as a

         15  trustee of the National Building Museum.

         16                 I'm the Chairman and Chief Executive

         17  Office of the Hennessy Group, a 600-person

         18  consulting, engineering, technology and construction

         19  firm founded here in New York City in 1928 by my

         20  grandfather. I offer this testimony in strong

         21  support of the Institution of quality-based

         22  selection procedures for architectural and

         23  engineering services contracts in the City of New

         24  York.

         25                 In the course of my 20 plus year
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          2  career I've worked with both public agencies and

          3  private clients to help them solve their facilities

          4  engineering problems.

          5                 During that time I've had the good

          6  fortune to work on some wonderful projects that in

          7  many ways have changed the face of this and other

          8  cities.

          9                 I've been fortunate to be able to

         10  contribute to the Javits Convention Center, a new

         11  building constructed over the FDR Drive for New York

         12  Presbyterian Hospital, and a restoration of the

         13  Pentagon after the attacks of 9/11, to mention just

         14  a few.

         15                 Over our 75-year history, our firm

         16  has been privileged to have been able to contribute

         17  to the development of Lincoln Center, United

         18  Nations, who we're now working with on their

         19  rejuvenation plan, Madison Square Garden, the

         20  Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts, and many

         21  more that you probably all know.

         22                 The reason I mention all these

         23  projects is not to impress you with our resume, but

         24  to indicate to you that we have a vast experience

         25  with all types of clients, both public and private,
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          2  and I want to make two points regarding the use of

          3  QBS procedures for architectural and engineering

          4  services contracts in the City of New York.

          5                 The first one I'd like to make is at

          6  least from the building side of the industry, the

          7  City is not attracting the best and brightest

          8  designers, many of us, including my firm, have

          9  chosen not to work for the City.

         10                 The process which begins with this

         11  selection is too cumbersome, fraught with

         12  uncertainty and too adversarial, so as a result many

         13  of us choose not to work with the City of New York.

         14  A City that is recognized as the capitol of the

         15  world, our City needs and deserves the best thinking

         16  the design community has to offer.

         17                 As a third generation engineer in New

         18  York and a fifth generation New Yorker, I'm

         19  committed to New York, as were my grandfather, who

         20  were a member of the Board of Education in the

         21  1960s, and my father, who is a Battery Park City

         22  Commissioner in the seventies and eighties.

         23                 During their day we did a great deal

         24  of work for the City, but the process is broken down

         25  and must be fixed before our firm would fully commit
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          2  to doing work for the City, something we'd like to

          3  do.

          4                 The first steps towards fixing the

          5  system is QBS. My second point has to do with

          6  competition, and I won't read the rest of it right

          7  now, because I think it's been said before about the

          8  competition by other people, so I submit the rest of

          9  the testimony in written form to you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         11                 Thanks for coming in and giving this

         12  testimony.

         13                 MR. KIIL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and

         14  Honorable Council members. My name is Leevi Kiil.

         15  I'm president of the American Institute of

         16  Architects, New York Chapter.

         17                 In addition, I am the Chairman and

         18  Chief Executive Officer of HLW International, a

         19  300-person architectural and engineering firm that

         20  has had continuing practice and significant presence

         21  in New York City for 117 years.

         22                 I appreciate the opportunity today to

         23  speak on behalf of the AIA New York Chapter and its

         24  members, over 3,000 architects working in New York

         25  City.
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          2                 I will also offer some insights from

          3  my own 30 years of experience in New York City, as

          4  well as my firm's experience.

          5                 My testimony strongly supports

          6  quality-based selection of architectural and

          7  engineering services for New York City as a proven

          8  method that will result in higher quality, more cost

          9  effective projects. And I must say that I appreciate

         10  the remarkable support the construction industry has

         11  given us in their previous testimony. The

         12  construction industry and the designing community

         13  don't always see to eye, but on this particular

         14  issue, we really do see to eye, and because we both

         15  feel, we all feel that this is the best for the City

         16  of New York.

         17                 Architects have been much in the

         18  public view recently, perhaps as never before, as

         19  New Yorkers have been dealing with rebuilding

         20  downtown Manhattan.

         21                 Architects have been criticized, as

         22  well as lauded for their ideas, or lack thereof, but

         23  through this public exposure it has become clear

         24  that creativity and good design really matters, and

         25  that architects and designers are at their best when
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          2  they can fully bring their talents to bear on behalf

          3  of their clients.

          4                 Just this morning, you may have read

          5  it in an article in the New York Times, Roland Betz,

          6  a Director of the Lower Manhattan Development

          7  Corporation commenting on the soon to be released

          8  schemes by the seven new architectural teams, was

          9  quoted as saying that the work is, quote

         10  "astoundingly innovative, creative and exciting,"

         11  and that "the plans were almost too fantastic to be

         12  described." Those are incredible words from a

         13  layperson about architecture.

         14                 Good design by creative architects

         15  letting their innovative spirit soar does indeed

         16  matter, and can enhance our projects far beyond our

         17  client's expectations.

         18                 Building projects today are more

         19  complex than ever. New responsibilities have been

         20  placed on designers to understand, work with and

         21  educate clients on new technologies that are

         22  incorporated into even the simplest buildings today.

         23                 Projects often require complex teams

         24  of technical consultants, financial experts, real

         25  estate consultants, and in the case of public
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          2  projects, the ability to understand and work with

          3  multiple agencies in order to meet the goals and

          4  obtain the proper approvals.

          5                 The architect is usually called upon

          6  to be the leader of this team, and to do so with

          7  great technical expertise and in the spirit of

          8  collaboration in order to get the job done.

          9                 Since the events of September 11th,

         10  additional criteria on codes, safety, fireproofing,

         11  building security and terrorism resistance are being

         12  developed, requiring that designers be fully

         13  cognizant of the latest techniques in these areas.

         14                 These additional levels of complexity

         15  in our building projects make it vitally important

         16  that New York City attract the best, most qualified

         17  designers for its projects. Professionals who can

         18  use their creative talents to their fullest and who

         19  can assume the leadership role required of them.

         20                 I believe that the current system of

         21  procurement for these services, severely hampers the

         22  City in accomplishing this goal.

         23                 To be sure, many architects and

         24  engineers currently providing services for the City

         25  are highly qualified and committed, but even they
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          2  are often unable to provide a level of service that

          3  needs to be provided because of the adversarial

          4  relationship that is inherent in the process, where

          5  low price is the primary selection criterion,

          6  forcing them to devote less time toward innovative

          7  solutions, utilizing less experienced staff or

          8  providing less detail in their design documents.

          9                 The results to the City are

         10  potentially alarming. Less than creative solutions,

         11  construction cost overruns due to incomplete

         12  documents, schedule extensions that cost the City

         13  valuable money, and potential litigation.

         14                 But many of the best firms in the

         15  City have simply chosen not to work for the City, as

         16  we heard from the previous testimony. My own firm,

         17  with its long history in New York City, reluctantly

         18  made a decision about a decade ago, not to work for

         19  City agencies any longer because of exactly these

         20  factors.

         21                 We had experienced too many projects

         22  where we had either -- we had to either face

         23  financial losses on projects or compromise our

         24  professional responsibilities and do work of lesser

         25  quality.

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 We felt that we could no longer under

          3  constraints of the present procurement system

          4  provide the responsible level of professional

          5  service required.

          6                 We chose, instead, to focus on the

          7  private sector and state and federal agencies where

          8  there is greater acknowledgment that selection of

          9  firms for professional services cannot be based on

         10  price alone. Qualifications and quality must be a

         11  primary factor.

         12                 I know that many other firms face the

         13  same dilemma.

         14                 Quality-based selection, as we've

         15  heard, is clearly a far better answer, as you have

         16  already heard from many of the other eloquent

         17  speakers before me, QBS benefits everyone.

         18                 The community with the best, most

         19  creative solutions to meet the needs of the project,

         20  the City agency which works with and manages the

         21  most highly qualified team, avoiding the missteps

         22  that can set projects back, the contractor who can

         23  really focus with confidence on delivering the

         24  project efficiently at the best price and highest

         25  quality, and ultimately the taxpayer who receives
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          2  innovative, cost effective design solutions at fair

          3  market value.

          4                 For these reasons, as well as the

          5  reasons already cited by my colleagues, I

          6  respectfully urge that the City Council consider and

          7  adopt Intro. 45, Quality-Based Selection.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank your for

         10  coming and giving your testimony.

         11                 MR. FRANCESE: Thank you for inviting

         12  me here today. My name is Michael Francese. I'm a

         13  Senior Vice President with Parsons Brinckerhoff, and

         14  a member of the Board of Directors of the New York

         15  Association for Consulting Engineers, as well as the

         16  Building Congress, New York Building Congress, and

         17  the Board of the Regional Plan Association.

         18                 I have 40 years in this business, in

         19  both the public and private sector, and before I

         20  joined Parsons Brinckerhoff, I was the regional

         21  director for the New York State Department of

         22  Transportation here in New York City, so I have a

         23  perspective from both the private sector and the

         24  public sector.

         25                 I want to tell you something about
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          2  Parsons Brinckerhoff. It's one of the oldest,

          3  continuous operating engineering companies in the

          4  United States, founded and headquartered here in New

          5  York City in 1885.

          6                 PB today is a multi-disciplinary form

          7  with 750 employees based here in Manhattan, and over

          8  9,000 employees around the United States and around

          9  the world.

         10                 We provide services for all kinds of

         11  infrastructure facilities, including transit

         12  systems, highways, bridges, airports, marine,

         13  powerplants, water-based water facilities, and

         14  buildings.

         15                 We're consistently ranked as one of

         16  the top United States engineering firms, and

         17  acknowledged to be one of the world's leaders in

         18  underground engineering.

         19                 What I'd like to do is just talk

         20  about some of the projects that we are doing for the

         21  multiple City agencies here, and I won't go through

         22  them all because I have handed you the testimony,

         23  but I think it's important to talk about them.

         24                 For the MTA, New York City Transit

         25  Authority, actually, our company designed the first
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          2  subway here in New York City, almost 100 years ago,

          3  and we've been working for that client, the New York

          4  City Transit Authority, ever since.

          5                 In some recent work we've done for

          6  the Transit Authority is the 63rd Street tunnel

          7  connection. We designed that. It's a $500 million

          8  construction contract.

          9                 Recently almost completed the design

         10  for the new Atlantic Terminal station complex in

         11  Brooklyn, where I grew up, by the way, in Park

         12  Slope, and we helped the Transit Authority in the

         13  restoration of the 1 and 9 subway that was damaged

         14  as part of the World Trade Center attack. And we

         15  were the firm that was just selected to design the

         16  number 7 line extension to the West Side of

         17  Manhattan, which is part of the City's plan for

         18  redeveloping the west side of Manhattan.

         19                 For the MTA Long Island Railroad,

         20  we've been working for them for years, doing

         21  passenger service studies, planning for a $200

         22  million modernization program, and we are the tunnel

         23  engineers doing the design for the East Side Access

         24  Project, which is going to connect the Long Island

         25  Railroad to Grand Central Terminal.

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 The MTA Triborough Bridge and Tunnel

          3  Authority, if any of you have driven through the

          4  Brooklyn Battery Tunnel or the Queens Midtown Tunnel

          5  lately, we were the engineers called upon to design

          6  the rehabilitation of those tunnels.

          7                 The MetroNorth Railroad, we designed

          8  work for pedestrian access at Grand Central

          9  Terminal, five stations along the New Haven line, a

         10  planning study to bring MetroNorth railroad into

         11  Penn Station.

         12                 And for the Port Authority of New

         13  York and New Jersey, we've been working for them for

         14  decades. Some of the work we've done, LaGuardia

         15  flyover, access to the Regents Corps, a major study

         16  to bring a new tunnel under the River from New

         17  Jersey.

         18                 Program management for the Terminal 1

         19  at JFK Airport, the $1.5 billion airport access

         20  project at JFK Airport, and we were just selected by

         21  the Port Authority to do the comprehensive port

         22  improvement plan for the harbor in New York.

         23                 Amtrak, we're working on the Farley

         24  Post Office, which is to make a new Penn Station,

         25  and we've done the engineering for the tunnel
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          2  ventilation on the East River tunnels on both First

          3  Avenue in Manhattan and in Long Island City.

          4                 And for New York State Department of

          5  Transportation, we have over $10 million of ongoing

          6  contracts, including design of the Long Island

          7  Expressway, environmental impact and design for

          8  Miller Highway, structural engineering inspection

          9  for 450 bridges, including the Queens Borough Bridge

         10  and the Manhattan Bridge.

         11                 Design for the rehabilitation, we

         12  just selected for the design for new interchange at

         13  Grand Central Parkway and the Long Island Expressway

         14  and the Van Wyck Expressway. And like John, I don't

         15  tell you this to have to impress you with our

         16  resume, but it's evident from that resume that we

         17  are one of the premiere firms that government

         18  agencies in this area turn to to meet their

         19  infrastructure needs.

         20                 However, only a very small percentage

         21  of that work do we do for New York City agencies.

         22  And why is that? We are a full-service firm with

         23  extensive infrastructure expertise recognized

         24  throughout our industry. PB is committed to

         25  providing quality service to our clients and is
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          2  clearly recognized by our clients by the repeat

          3  business that we get from them.

          4                 The main reason we do so little work

          5  in New York City is because the selection criteria

          6  that they use for professional service is

          7  essentially based on price, the lowest price wins.

          8  That's the process that's in place now, and it's not

          9  working.

         10                 PB, to be able to serve our clients

         11  in the highest standards that we are known for, and

         12  by the way expected to deliver, we are not willing

         13  to compete when low price is the selection criteria.

         14                 During this past year, just to give

         15  you some example, we were selected for over $50

         16  million of new business here in New York. About one

         17  percent of that was from all of New York City

         18  agencies.

         19                 In the past year, Fiscal Year '02,

         20  some $60 million of revenues in this City, less than

         21  three percent came from all New York City agencies

         22  combined.

         23                 I personally find it difficult to

         24  believe and, quite frankly, very hard to understand,

         25  why New York City's procurement process makes it

                                                            105

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  virtually impossible for Parsons Brinckerhoff to

          3  serve the City that we have called home for over a

          4  century.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

          7  coming to give your testimony on behalf of yourself

          8  and your firm.

          9                 Any questions?

         10                 Council Member Clarke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I'd like to,

         12  first of all, say thank you all for coming and

         13  sharing the varied experiences there. I find it

         14  disturbing to hear that our quality is compromised

         15  when such distinguished firms as yours have been

         16  discouraged by the process, that we've been

         17  utilizing in the City of New York.

         18                 When I think about in particular the

         19  redevelopment of Lower Manhattan, and the process

         20  that we just went through to look at how we're

         21  rebuilding our City, and then when you put in the

         22  historical context of some of the innovations that

         23  we've had in this City in terms of architecture, and

         24  how it's withstood the test of time, it concerns me

         25  when firms such as yours find the process so
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          2  detestable that now we're somewhat relegated to a

          3  smaller pool of firms to select for what we see as

          4  innovation in architecture and engineering.

          5                 My question is do you believe that

          6  the design and engineering that is done up front,

          7  based on quality, will speak to in the long run the

          8  longevity of the use of and I guess the development

          9  of our City in terms of how long those buildings

         10  remain a part of our landscape, in terms of

         11  maintenance of those buildings, is all of that part

         12  of the factor of design and engineering up front?

         13  And in your experience?

         14                 MR. HENNESSY: In mine I'd certainly

         15  say yes. You know, if you take a look at the cost

         16  and a lifecycle basis, it varies. But if you take a

         17  look at the cost of design, and often it's looked at

         18  in a context of construction, relative to

         19  construction and even then it's small, but the cost

         20  of construction is less than ten percent of the

         21  lifecycle cost of the building. So, now you're

         22  talking about less than one percent of the total

         23  cost that an owner will incur over life on design

         24  services, and if the designer is just trying to get

         25  the job done and get it out and not thinking about
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          2  what their decisions, the impact it has on the

          3  operation and the maintenance, the energy costs, the

          4  ability to service, a lot of problems are the

          5  inability to service the building to maintain it

          6  over time, and if they don't take the time to think

          7  of that, you're costing hundreds of hundreds of

          8  times the amount of money that you saved by

          9  competitively rebidding the engineering services.

         10                 I think you build in an inefficient

         11  building, because the people don't take the time to

         12  think it through.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And what

         14  impact -- this is my final question, I'm sorry. In

         15  terms of New York is known for innovations in

         16  architecture and its unique development over time,

         17  we all like to think of New York as cutting edge, as

         18  the place to come and just visually enjoy ourselves.

         19                 In your estimation, and I don't want

         20  you to necessarily judge your competitors, but would

         21  you say that we've been on the incline, or have we

         22  been going up in terms of innovation and

         23  architecture, and do you think there is a tie to the

         24  way that we currently do business in the development

         25  of designs?
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          2                 In other words, I don't know, I'm

          3  traveling through New York, and I just don't see

          4  anything special happening, quite frankly, but I

          5  want to get from you guys whether that could be part

          6  of the reasoning? Enough said.

          7                 MR. HENNESSY: One thing I would say

          8  is you can take a look around both the City and the

          9  country, and some cutting edge buildings have often,

         10  and maybe even most often, were developed by

         11  government. You can look around and there are some

         12  very special buildings, and Leevi being the

         13  architect will tell you better than me being the

         14  engineer, but in some of the energy conservation, in

         15  some of the things we do, cutting edge things that

         16  are being done by government. But I challenge people

         17  to show me where the City of New York has done it.

         18                 The State maybe, the federal

         19  government, the City used to but take a look around

         20  now, you're not doing it now.

         21                 MR. KIIL: Yes, just to add to that. I

         22  think if you see little, in terms of innovation, in

         23  buildings around New York, you'll see even less on

         24  buildings that the City is building, and that's

         25  really the point that John made as well.
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          2                 I think we as architects, we always

          3  have to push ourselves, whether it be with private

          4  clients or with public clients, to be innovative, to

          5  be creative, and that's really what the thrill of

          6  being an architect is all about.

          7                 But if we get imposed in the City

          8  work that we're doing with constraints that are

          9  based on cost where we can't put our best people, or

         10  can't do our best thinking, can't do our best

         11  thinking up front about the long-term energy issues

         12  and things like that, you know, we're just hampered

         13  in the process. And many firms, as I've said,

         14  including my own, I just said, it's not worth the

         15  frustration. And unless that process changes, and we

         16  can do it with a clear knowledge that we can use our

         17  creative talents to the best of our ability, we're

         18  not going to get involved in that process. And

         19  that's an agonizing decision for us, frankly,

         20  because as I said earlier, we've been in this City

         21  for a long time, we're committed to helping build

         22  and design and build the City, we do it, but we

         23  don't do it with City agencies.

         24                 MR. HENNESSY: And we have a saying in

         25  our firm, we want to work with people who view us as
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          2  a trusted business partner, and if you're bidding us

          3  out the same way you bid out that gallon of

          4  gasoline, you're not a trusted business partner.

          5                 And it's very hard to get my people

          6  excited about working for people who think that they

          7  are just the same to the people who are buying it as

          8  a paper napkin. I can't motivate them to do it.

          9                 MR. FRANCESE: And I think I'd like to

         10  add, as a firm that does a lot of engineering, in

         11  terms of highways and tunnels and bridges, that,

         12  too, in the up front stage it takes a lot of

         13  thinking. You just don't start off on the first

         14  idea, the first drawing you make is the final

         15  drawing, and when you bid a project and it's the

         16  wrong price and you have to cut your price to the

         17  bone to get the job, you just can't do that kind of

         18  thinking and I think everyone loses for that.

         19                 MR. KIIL: Some people have a saying

         20  "design to fee." Not design to scope, "design to

         21  fee."

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         23  John Liu from Queens.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUEENS: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair.
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          2                 I certainly share a concern for

          3  building and planning for the long-term, and I

          4  appreciate your gentlemen's time this morning.

          5                 I'm just wondering if you could give

          6  us a few examples of projects that have been bid out

          7  by the City where you felt that your firm really

          8  wouldn't be able to bid for, to submit a proposal

          9  for simply because it would have forced you to

         10  compromise your quality standards.

         11                 Do we have any recent examples?

         12                 MR. FRANCESE: I gave you some

         13  examples of the volume of work we do for the City

         14  which is very, very small.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: For examples, if

         16  you look at the history of work that PB has done,

         17  it's generally been the kinds of projects generally

         18  are paid for at the state and federal level; is that

         19  not true?

         20                 MR. FRANCESE: That's true.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, what would be

         22  some examples in recent years, where you felt that

         23  PB really couldn't submit a proposal simply because

         24  it would have compromised the quality standards?

         25                 MR. FRANCESE: Well, I think the
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          2  number of projects we submit for, I can't list those

          3  projects right now. But the City of New York, the

          4  Bureau of Bridges, for instance, has a huge, huge

          5  program, and we do virtually none of it or very,

          6  very little. And the reason is we can't compete, we

          7  will not cut our price to the point to take a job

          8  to, number one, lose money, and to do a poor quality

          9  job.

         10                 So, we don't even go after most of

         11  them. We occasionally go after a City job, and

         12  occasionally a City job, as was mentioned earlier,

         13  that when they use federal money in a City contract,

         14  then they will use a Qualifications-Based Selection

         15  process.

         16                 So, if we see a City project that has

         17  federal money in it and it's a project that's of

         18  interest to us, we will pursue that project.

         19                 But by and large, I try to do some,

         20  because I feel we're based here, we're headquartered

         21  here, we were founded here, for God sakes, we should

         22  be doing some work in New York City, and as a

         23  manager of New York and New Jersey for Parsons

         24  Brinckerhoff, I try to select a few projects so we

         25  can be part, can be a corporate citizen, can work in
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          2  this town, but look at the volume of work we do,

          3  look at the size we are, and we just can't afford to

          4  work --

          5                 MR. HENNESSY: I can give you one set.

          6  A few years back the City was doing court houses,

          7  some of the court houses were being, there was an

          8  agreement for the Dormitory Authority to handle some

          9  of them. We would pursue the ones that were being

         10  handled by the Dormitory Authority, not the ones

         11  being handled by the City of New York. We chose that

         12  we didn't want to get into the process. We have done

         13  federal court houses, we have done court houses

         14  around the country. We chose not to in that case,

         15  because the process was such that I wasn't going to

         16  get into it because it wasn't going to be about

         17  basing it on selection.

         18                 And part of the selection process is

         19  the scope of what you're asking is undefined.

         20                 What I often hear from lawyers is the

         21  reason you don't bid legal services is because the

         22  scope of services is undefined at the time you hire

         23  them. If you're going to go through litigation, I

         24  don't know how many hours it's going to take.

         25                 Well, the scope is generally fairly
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          2  undefined at the time that they're securing

          3  architectural and engineering services. You don't

          4  know exactly what you want from them at that point.

          5  And that process of negotiating formalizes that, and

          6  that's where you're actually getting some design,

          7  you're getting some clarification, and that

          8  crystalizes it, it allows you to come to an

          9  agreement on the price. And, so, that's the reason.

         10                 The process itself mitigates from

         11  people saying, hey, I want to do that. Same

         12  buildings for the City of New York, one handled by a

         13  different agency, and we decided we'd try to pursue

         14  those, but not pursue the ones that were being

         15  handled by the City.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Mr. Chair, a

         17  couple of follow-ups, if I may?

         18                 In your example, sir, of the amount

         19  of work that the City does contract out for, for

         20  bridge and highway work, on an annual basis, how

         21  much work are we talking about? Are we talking about

         22  in the billions of dollars? I would imagine so, with

         23  regard to the capital projects.

         24                 MR. FRANCESE: For just bridges and

         25  highways, I don't think it's in the billions, but
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          2  it's in the hundreds of millions of dollars.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And that's on an

          4  annual basis.

          5                 MR. FRANCESE: I'll give you an

          6  example. We did the inspections of the Queens

          7  Borough Bridge, as I mentioned earlier, I think the

          8  Manhattan Bridge, those are City bridges. The reason

          9  why we did them, though, was a state contract, New

         10  York State Department of Transportation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, with the

         12  hundreds of millions of dollars that the City of New

         13  York is spending on bridge and highway construction,

         14  do you think we're getting a shoddy work product

         15  from companies that have been continuing to do all

         16  of this work in the absence of companies like

         17  Parsons Brinckerhoff and your fellow peers?

         18                 MR. FRANCESE: Let me say that you're

         19  not getting the services of Parsons Brinckerhoff,

         20  and I think that's a loss.

         21                 MR. HENNESSEY: I think what you're

         22  getting is in the end the process, because you have

         23  competent people kind of working through it, the

         24  contractor side, there's enough checks and balances,

         25  you are not getting something that's probably
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          2  endangering public safety. What you're not doing is

          3  getting your best value for your dollar.

          4                 If you save ten percent on something,

          5  you can build ten percent more.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: What would have a

          7  prestigious firm like Syska Hennessey done

          8  differently with that City court house?

          9                 MR. HENNESSEY: That's a very hard

         10  thing to say, because what happens is -- as a matter

         11  of fact, the former Buildings Commissioner and GSA

         12  Commissioner here in the City Rudy Rinaldi once gave

         13  a speech and said if you hire a great architect and

         14  have a lousy client, at best you're going to get

         15  mediocre architecture.

         16                 If you hire a great -- if a great

         17  client hires a good architect, you can get great

         18  architecture. And I mean, this is an agency guy, and

         19  when you say what would I have done differently,

         20  until you get into the process in which, you know,

         21  it's hard to explain what is different, it's the

         22  process that mitigates against doing the

         23  investigations and doing things, it ends up costing

         24  you a lot more money.

         25                 As I said, if you take a look,
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          2  anywhere engineering services can cost anywhere from

          3  five to ten to 12 percent of the construction cost,

          4  we can cost you 30 percent in a heartbeat by making

          5  mistakes.

          6                 And, so, the leverage there, if

          7  you're saving a couple percent of the total on the

          8  engineering fees, you can lose it like that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes. I mean, I

         10  think that it's a strong argument that over the long

         11  term you actually save costs by going to a QBS

         12  system, I'm just struggling for some evidence of

         13  this, an example where over the long term, because a

         14  contract that was awarded simply based on the

         15  low-price bid, that somehow the City suffered

         16  financially. I think that's a very strong argument,

         17  but I think I certainly would be more comfortable if

         18  I had an example that would support that argument.

         19                 MR. HENNESSEY: I think it's hard to

         20  take an example in a City that doesn't have it,

         21  because you're not running two similar projects in

         22  parallel.

         23                 What I would direct you to is the

         24  study that Professor Griffis did at Polytechnic

         25  University, and it cites in there a study that was

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  done between Maryland and Florida and the difference

          3  in what they received from the two different

          4  contracting methods, so that supporting evidence

          5  that QBS gets you the low cost in the long-term.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, I mean,

          7  with all of the prestigious firms in this room right

          8  now, I actually do find it difficult that we

          9  wouldn't be able to come up with an example, because

         10  if you're arguing that a poor design up front will

         11  lead to higher long-term costs, it suggests that in

         12  subsequent years, whether it be two, three, five,

         13  ten years down the road after the initial project is

         14  completed, that maintenance costs would be higher

         15  than normal, that there may be reconstruction costs

         16  involved; I mean, hasn't anybody done some kind of

         17  study about that to support this contention that

         18  without the QBS system that longer term costs are

         19  higher for the City of New York? You know, I would

         20  agree with you that it's a very strong argument for

         21  QBS, but at the same time, can we get one example

         22  where this contention for QBS could be supported?

         23                 MR. FRANCESE: I think what you're

         24  saying is difficult because you're saying here's a

         25  job, it was selected by low bidder, and low and
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          2  behold the job had five change orders down the road,

          3  and maybe the product didn't last as long as we

          4  thought it was going to last, and your question is

          5  if that was done differently, what would be the end

          6  result? And that's kind of hard to say. I think you

          7  have to look at statistics, and the amount of change

          8  orders that seem to go on in this City, endless and

          9  endless, of course, going up, look at what the

         10  neighboring states are doing and why, look at the

         11  federal government, what are they doing and why.

         12                 But unless you did a pilot program

         13  and took a couple of jobs and did one one way and

         14  another another way, it would be very difficult to

         15  be that specific, as some of this is intuitive. But

         16  I can say that, speaking for my firm and maybe John,

         17  and others here, that there are people not

         18  participating in your process that you would like to

         19  participate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, you're free

         21  to participate. I think we certainly would want

         22  everybody to participate, and I'd be concerned if

         23  anybody wasn't participating for reasons that really

         24  could be demonstrated.

         25                 Again, you know, it sounds to me like
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          2  we should simply go along with the argument that

          3  we're suffering quality, and that lack of quality up

          4  front is leading to longer, higher, longer term

          5  costs, simply because some firms choose not to

          6  participate in our City's bidding process.

          7                 MR. FRANCESE: And lack of innovation.

          8                 MR. HENNESSEY: I suspect that you

          9  might be able to, and you know, we don't do this

         10  because to a certain extent we're designers, we

         11  don't operate buildings, you could probably get from

         12  a real estate company what the City's -- what the

         13  cost is to maintain a City building in terms of

         14  benchmark, and benchmark it against another

         15  building. And you could almost make the case that

         16  there's your problem right there. And if that's the

         17  kind of data that you need, we can try to look and

         18  see how we can get that data.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20                 Council Member Stewart.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chair.

         23                 I just want to thank you gentlemen

         24  for your excellent testimony, and I'm very much

         25  impressed with the qualifications.
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          2                 I have one simple question, and that

          3  is, in making the choice, the selection is based on

          4  qualification, and that qualification is based on

          5  the experience, the work that you have done in the

          6  past, more so than the quote/unquote educational

          7  background on all of that. The qualification is

          8  usually based on the experience that you have done;

          9  isn't that so?

         10                 MR. HENNESSEY: I think it's part of

         11  it. What you have to understand is in a

         12  qualification-based selection, quality-based

         13  selection, you look at several things. You look at

         14  the qualifications of the term. You also look at the

         15  qualifications of the individuals who proposed to

         16  carry out this service from inside that firm. So,

         17  the education is part of that qualification.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         19                 MR. HENNESSEY: The education,

         20  licensure, experience that that specific individual

         21  has with that building type or facility or bridge or

         22  tunnel, and what are the qualifications of the team

         23  coming there.

         24                 So, it's really down to the

         25  qualifications of not just the firm, but the people
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          2  who are going to provide the services to you on an

          3  individual basis.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I understand

          5  that part. But apart from the educational, you know,

          6  certification and all of that, and saying

          7  qualification is based on experience, if you have

          8  done this type of work before and et cetera, and I

          9  know the City basically, in terms of awarding

         10  contracts, one of the qualification it has, if you

         11  have done work for the City before and you have to

         12  show that you have done work for the City before,

         13  how would you contend the City change it around? Not

         14  to say that you have done work for the City before

         15  so that we can get new qualified, when you say

         16  qualified, people who have the experience elsewhere

         17  and other certificates that they can at least

         18  participate in this process?

         19                 MR. FRANCESE: I will tell you how I

         20  did that. I was in government.

         21                 There are some jobs that are so

         22  critical, or so difficult that you're less likely to

         23  take a chance with a novice or someone who is not

         24  from the City or someone you don't know. In that

         25  case, when you select firms, usually you have
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          2  multiple criteria, you have the experience of the

          3  firm, the experience of the people, as John said,

          4  being proposed from that firm, the firm's response

          5  to your technical proposal, that they understand the

          6  project, and they see the difficulties in the

          7  project, and then their familiarity, perhaps, with

          8  the area.

          9                 You can weight those criterias. And

         10  there are times when I had jobs that were routine

         11  jobs, I didn't need someone who has worked perhaps

         12  in New York City for the last 50 years.

         13                 I could allow a different firm to

         14  come in and give them a try, and we would wait their

         15  familiarity with the City or the experience in the

         16  City less, but there are times when it was critical

         17  and we would wait them more.

         18                 So, the qualification-based selection

         19  has multiple criteria. It just doesn't pick on low

         20  price. But it's not just the experience of the firm,

         21  otherwise that same firm would get all the jobs, and

         22  that's not the case.

         23                 MR. HENNESSEY: When you do, the

         24  federal government could have five, six, seven

         25  various, and they weight them differently, and there
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          2  are many cases in the federal government where

          3  emerging businesses are a very important factor in

          4  how you bring that on.

          5                 We always say when we do health care

          6  work for hospitals, you go in and you do the little

          7  projects first and build up your credibility with

          8  them before they're going to get a big one, and so

          9  there's ways to bring that to bring our new people

         10  in who are emerging firms as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We do have to

         12  move on. Helen Sears has the last question, but I

         13  thought that this was a very dry area, and I thought

         14  that this hearing would only take an hour and a

         15  half, and here we are; can I put in a change order

         16  now or later?

         17                 But there is another hearing at 1:00,

         18  we do have another panel, so we're going to

         19  entertain the last question on this panel from

         20  Council Member Sears, and then we're going to move

         21  to our remaining witnesses. And we want to give them

         22  the opportunity to be exploratory just like we were

         23  with the other panels. We don't want to cut anyone

         24  short here, but we do have to move on. And I just

         25  remind my colleagues of that time frame.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I'm just

          3  going to be actually very quick.

          4                 The testimony has been really

          5  wonderful, and what I think we have seen so far this

          6  morning, to me New York City is a City that's in

          7  change, it's not the same City, it's not the same

          8  legislative body, and it means with that that we

          9  don't do business as usual. And there is resistance

         10  to changing procedures that have been in for a long

         11  time, and the City is antiquated in its procedures

         12  and its policies and how it absolutely administers

         13  its programs.

         14                 It behooves this new City Council,

         15  and I thank you, Mr. Chair, for really having some

         16  very fine testimony. It behooves us in a time of

         17  crisis that the City even in the seventies has not

         18  faced what we have faced, is a time to be most

         19  creative, most innovative, and certainly initiate

         20  change that will bring us into an era of prosperity,

         21  and I believe that we can do that, and your

         22  testimony has really helped to confirm what I have

         23  believed all along. So, I thank you and I thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'd like to

         25  thank the panel, all of you, for coming in and
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          2  taking your time and giving your testimony today.

          3                 Our next witness is Bernard Haber or

          4  Douglaston, New York.

          5                 Hi, Bernard. Give it to this young

          6  man, Bernard. Thank you.

          7                 Mr. Haber, would you raise your right

          8  hand? And do you swear or affirm to tell the truth

          9  concerning your testimony here today?

         10                 MR. HABER: I do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Would you state

         12  your name and your affiliation, if any, for the

         13  record, and begin your testimony.

         14                 MR. HABER: Bernard Haber. I'm a

         15  retired individual, now a consulting engineer.

         16                 My testimony is in favor of Intro.

         17  45. I'm here as a professional engineer, and the

         18  reason is that I also wear two hats.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I don't see any

         20  hats on today.

         21                 MR. HABER: I'm a little bald so I --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. All right.

         23                 MR. HABER: Now, what I've done, by

         24  the way, I've taken my magic marker and crossed out

         25  everything for the purpose of being brief.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. We

          3  appreciate it.

          4                 MR. HABER: But one of my hats is, or

          5  was, I should say, as Chairman of Community Board 11

          6  for the past 30 years. And just like you, who was

          7  subject to term limitations, in March my term ended.

          8  Thirty years, I don't know whether you people will

          9  be here for 30 years.

         10                 But you are civic people, just as I

         11  am, so I'm going to talk to that aspect of it in

         12  part.

         13                 My other hat is until last year I was

         14  the managing partner, of a consulting engineering

         15  firm, not quite as old as Parsons Brinckeroff,

         16  although we think we are really older, we were

         17  founded in 1887, we're a 116-year-old firm, and we

         18  have been in New York City practicing engineering

         19  for 80 years, so we know this City.

         20                 I live in this City, and I love this

         21  City. In my 33 years involvement in community

         22  boards, and by the way, even though I don't chair

         23  Community Board 11 anymore, I still serve on

         24  numerous boards and commissions and so forth

         25  throughout New York City and New York State, so I'm
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          2  still involved.

          3                 But in my 33 years on the community

          4  board, I was involved in virtually every kind of

          5  capital project that you can think of, parks,

          6  sewers, waterlines, streets, bridges, buildings,

          7  whatever it was that happened in my district. And

          8  one particular project comes to mind: We had a

          9  project, a $20 million sewer project in Bayside,

         10  Queens, just recently. The quality of the work,

         11  which was low bid, both for the construction,

         12  obviously, and also for the construction

         13  engineering, was exactly that, low bid, low quality.

         14                 The inspecting engineer, in my

         15  opinion, as a community board chair, did not do his

         16  job, to such an extent that at one point I had to

         17  convene a public hearing to address the wrath of the

         18  community and 200 people showed up because the

         19  contractor who should have been supervised properly,

         20  or at least the work inspector, was shoddy work, he

         21  had disregard for the community, as far as the

         22  residents are concerned, and the work was late, and

         23  the entire community was upset for more than two and

         24  a half years.

         25                 The consequence, or at least the
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          2  consequence of that was that the work today has not

          3  even been fixed, that was constructed. The agencies

          4  have been called in and they had to address at the

          5  public hearing the problems that we had. But it's an

          6  example that happens day in and day out throughout

          7  New York City on inspector construction jobs, and

          8  even on design jobs where you pick price prior to

          9  quality.

         10                 One interesting thing, too, is that

         11  where there's price bidding for professional

         12  services come into play, the fact of the matter is

         13  that prior to 19 -- to the last Charter revision,

         14  late eighties, early nineties, the City of New York

         15  chose their engineers and architects on a quality

         16  basis, and if you have an old charter of the City of

         17  New York, you will find, and I believe it was

         18  section 349, it says that the selection of

         19  professional service for the low price is not

         20  appropriate, states that in the old City charter.

         21                 When the new City Charter came about,

         22  the Procurement Policy Board was established. The

         23  Procurement Policy Board established the price

         24  bidding for professional services.

         25                 Not by mandate, they did it for
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          2  expediency, and that started in 1990.

          3                 The process that has been in play up

          4  to this point, and by the way, the testimony that

          5  you have in the written is quite different from what

          6  I'm saying now, because most of the things I had in

          7  there have already been said, the process that you

          8  find right now is what is called in one agency the

          9  "coffee can process."

         10                 Let me explain that to you, because

         11  this is something that Ms. Matthews said that it's a

         12  very fair, equal process.

         13                 The City of New York, the way they

         14  procure their engineering architectural services, is

         15  to request qualification forms from anybody who is

         16  interested in doing work in New York City, and those

         17  qualifications come in, the qualifications are

         18  segregated for small jobs, medium jobs, large jobs,

         19  and when a requirement comes in for a large job,

         20  let's say in my expertise in the bridge field,

         21  bridge and highway field, there are all kinds of

         22  different bridges. There are movable bridges, there

         23  are arch bridges, there are suspension bridges, it

         24  doesn't make any difference, you are in the large

         25  bridge category.
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          2                 You're put in a coffee can, the 20 or

          3  so people that exist. The coffee can is put on the

          4  table, eight people are chosen. Those eight people

          5  receive requests for proposals. Those eight people

          6  propose, and a technical proposal. And let me tell

          7  you about a technical proposal. A technical proposal

          8  mostly consists of the man hours of work that you're

          9  going to be putting into that project. That's a

         10  technical proposal. Once you give the man hours that

         11  you're going to be using, then have all these eight

         12  proposals, you pretty well know who has got the best

         13  or the lowest proposal.

         14                 The price then is asked for by the

         15  three most technically qualified, and then those

         16  three provide a price.

         17                 Now, the price may not necessarily --

         18  may be the lowest, and your chosen, but sometimes

         19  there may be some other preferences that the

         20  Department may have, but there really isn't a

         21  qualitative technical proposal. And the one thing

         22  about engineering and architecture, it's a judgment

         23  service, it's something that you can't define.

         24                 As an example, when I, or any one of

         25  us in our profession, when we propose on a project,
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          2  we don't know what the subsurface conditions are on

          3  the building or the bridge or whatever. We don't

          4  know what the structural requirements are, the site

          5  conditions, that can't be defined in the request for

          6  proposal. So, the City provides a request but can't

          7  give you the full scope of that request.

          8                 So, therefore, when you evaluate

          9  that, what happens is that the City really hasn't

         10  got proposals that are comparable, and, therefore,

         11  they are not sure whether they're getting true value

         12  in the decisions or the selection that they make.

         13                 I could go on but most of the things

         14  have already been said.

         15                 So, there are just a couple of things

         16  that I want to mention, and to answer what Ms.

         17  Matthews said.

         18                 One of the things is that the Mayor's

         19  Office of Contracting has, she said, talked to all

         20  the agencies. I'm pretty sure she has. She's talked

         21  to the commissioners, and the deputy commissioners,

         22  and all the appointed officials, but if she were to

         23  talk to the contracting officer, and if she were to

         24  talk to the chief engineers and the guys in the

         25  trenches, I think she'd get a totally different
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          2  story.

          3                 The fact of the matter is, in the

          4  last Administration there was a Director of

          5  Contracting, a very nice man, and I talked to him

          6  one time and he said, why don't you come and see me.

          7  And I did. I spent one entire afternoon. He was a

          8  lawyer from Stanford University, working partially

          9  -- well, some time in California, and he was

         10  brought into the New York Administration as a

         11  Director, and for one whole afternoon I gave him a

         12  lecture on how consulting engineers and architects

         13  operate, what is the basis of our proposal, what is

         14  the basis of our fee, what is the basis of our

         15  overhead, and how do we work. He had know idea, and

         16  why should he have that? He's never been a

         17  consulting engineer or an architect, he's been a

         18  lawyer. I certainly wouldn't know exactly the ins

         19  and the outs of the legal profession.

         20                 So, I think that the issue here is,

         21  of course, Ms. Matthews should be talking to the

         22  people in the trenches to get the real feel for

         23  this, but QBS is a better process. It's a better

         24  process because you put the best people on the

         25  project, not the cheapest.
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          2                 So, I hope that you will evaluate my

          3  testimony, which is quite different from what I said

          4  just now, but I would like to say one last thing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure.

          6                 MR. HABER: One last thing in answer

          7  to Councilperson Clarke's question.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member.

          9                 MR. HABER: Council person?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member.

         11                 MR. HABER: Oh, Council Member, sorry.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It's not

         13  Councilman, Councilwoman, Councilperson.

         14                 MR. HABER: Council Member.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: There you go,

         16  just one word, Council Member for each and every one

         17  of us.

         18                 MR. HABER: I'm with you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Very generic.

         20                 MR. HABER: She asked the question are

         21  we innovative, and is the City looking for

         22  innovative work?

         23                 I have one example. In 1988, the

         24  Williamsburg Bridge was about to collapse, so they

         25  said. And there was a contest, and 25 international
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          2  and national firms gave a proposal what should be

          3  done with the Williamsburg Bridge, and my firm,

          4  fortunately, was one of the six finalists. And we

          5  proposed a very unusual bridge, a bridge that was

          6  defined by New York Times as the most creative

          7  bridge that could be put in place of the

          8  Williamsburg Bridge. It was called a pendulum

          9  bridge. I won't go into the technical details, but

         10  we had estimated that at about $800 million, 1988.

         11  The City fathers decided, no, we're not going to

         12  take a gamble, we're going to try to rehabilitate

         13  the old Williamsburg Bridge.

         14                 It's 14 years later and the

         15  rehabilitation still goes on, and the price tag on

         16  it, I believe, is upwards of $1.2 billion at this

         17  point.

         18                 So, as far as innovation in New York

         19  City, it's questionable. I hope in the future we

         20  will be more innovative.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. And

         23  your testimony is different but clearly appropriate.

         24                 MR. HABER: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: As a layperson,
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          2  you know, I appreciate your testimony.

          3                 And thank you. Our last panel, and I

          4  please request everyone to stay to hear their

          5  testimony.

          6                 MR. NEWMAN: Ahmed Shakir, Local 375,

          7  and Jon Forster.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: From Local 375.

          9                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         10  hands.

         11                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         12  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. SHAKIR: I do.

         15                 MR. FORSTER: I do.

         16                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         17  and affiliations for the record and begin your

         18  testimony.

         19                 MR. FORSTER: Thank you. Jon Forster,

         20  a member of the Executive Board of Local 375.

         21                 MR. SHAKIR: Good morning, Councilman,

         22  Chairperson, and thank you very much for giving this

         23  opportunity to speak.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: State your name

         25  and your affiliation.
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          2                 MR. SHAKIR: My name is Ahmed Shakir,

          3  Secretary of Local 375.

          4                 I came here to testify.

          5                 MR. FORSTER: I thank you for the

          6  opportunity. I think maybe we'll be able to share a

          7  perspective that's a little different than what has

          8  been shared to date.

          9                 I also want to say just

         10  parenthetically we're also the people that two days

         11  ago brought you the noise out of the sidewalk over

         12  here in regards to issues around the SCA.

         13                 We are stating in opposition to

         14  Intro. 45, as is currently written, and will provide

         15  a written copy of our testimony after the hearing.

         16                 The Civil Service Technical Guild

         17  represents some 7,000 engineers, architects,

         18  construction managers and related titles in almost

         19  every agency here in the City of New York, so we

         20  actually have a good bit of experience with this.

         21                 Let me state clearly that the Civil

         22  Service Technical Guild supports quality-based

         23  selection procurements for architectural and

         24  engineering services.

         25                 Our problem is that the language of
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          2  the proposed bill we believe will have a negative

          3  effect of reducing competition by negotiating the

          4  contract with only the top rated firm, instead of

          5  negotiations with perhaps a short list of qualified

          6  firms. In fact, what we would perhaps propose is

          7  that we take the three lowest bidders, and that we

          8  subject them to in fact the quality criteria which

          9  will have to be established, and that if we cannot

         10  find one of the three lowest bidders who would

         11  conform to those quality criteria, then we move to

         12  the next three, and we move from the bottom of the

         13  list up, rather than from the top of the list down.

         14                 I also think that it's terribly

         15  important to answer the question that Councilman

         16  Jackson asked earlier, which is why if in the City

         17  of New York we had used quality-based selection in

         18  the past, why did we do away with that? And I don't

         19  have the answer to that, but I believe that part of

         20  it may have been fiscal impropriety. We need to keep

         21  these things in check, so we're looking for a

         22  balance between quality but also cost.

         23                 What is not stated in the bill,

         24  however, is also, there should be a requirement that

         25  in-house staff, that is the City employees, these
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          2  very architects and engineers who we represent, that

          3  their capabilities and cost effectiveness should

          4  also be included in this competitive process, and

          5  that there is a real opportunity for the work to be

          6  kept in-house, by using in-house staff.

          7                 In fact, when we talk about

          8  quality-based selection for architectural and

          9  engineering services, we think some of the best

         10  quality comes from the selection of City in-house

         11  technical staff for design and inspection of capital

         12  projects.

         13                 Let me just remind you, it was our

         14  members of the Transit Authority that redesigned the

         15  number 1 and 9 trains after the attack on 9/11,

         16  brought them in months ahead of schedule and way

         17  under cost.

         18                 It was our members at the Department

         19  of Design and Construction that ran the WTC site

         20  after 9/11 so well, that when FEMA came in they

         21  said, look, we can't improve on this, you guys go

         22  for it.

         23                 Those are our members. Those are the

         24  people we represent, because work is done well

         25  in-house.
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          2                 Unfortunately, for too long City

          3  agencies following the direction of the Mayor's

          4  Office have used the policy of the non-selection of

          5  in-house staff for these projects.

          6                 At this time I want to talk a little

          7  bit about why the contracting out is problematic.

          8                 Generally in City construction

          9  agencies, the increased use of consultants has led

         10  to in-house staff performing no more than ten to 15

         11  percent now of design and field inspection of

         12  municipal facilities, of which there are many, many.

         13  We're talking about libraries, community centers,

         14  police stations, fire houses, courts, et cetera.

         15                 Typically in-house staff is utilized

         16  only to supervise and administer consultant services

         17  in the area, and although insight and supervision of

         18  this work is important, we believe there is a

         19  serious imbalance between the in-house and

         20  consultant projects.

         21                 There are many important advantages

         22  to the City and the taxpayers to be realized by

         23  doing A And E work in-house.

         24                 One, the in-house staff has the

         25  expertise to perform the design, inspection, and
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          2  project officer responsibilities for capital

          3  projects. There is no substitute for the

          4  institutional knowledge that these folks have. Many

          5  of them have been in the agencies for a very long

          6  time.

          7                 The comparative cost analyses of

          8  consultant versus in-house work also shows that

          9  contracting out costs 20 to 50 percent more -- I'm

         10  sorry, that contracting out costs 20 to 50 percent

         11  less if it's done in-house. If we do the design

         12  in-house we can safe 20 to 50 percent of the cost.

         13                 We eliminate the ten percent

         14  consultant fee for profit, we eliminate the ten

         15  percent additional cost to the City for simply

         16  preparing, monitoring and administering the

         17  contract, and has been stated here several times, if

         18  you have a good in-house design, you will result in

         19  fewer costly change orders down the road.

         20                 By the way, the SCA, which has come

         21  up a couple of times is a perfect example of this.

         22  Where the design work is done in-house, it costs

         23  less to construct schools, and our numbers in fact

         24  show that in-house we can design schools right

         25  within the ball park the Mayor is talking about in
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          2  his proposed new agency.

          3                 Third, the quality of work is

          4  enhanced by in-house specialization, expertise and

          5  familiarity with systems resulting in superior plan,

          6  smoother flow of work, less litigation, less delays

          7  in construction.

          8                 A steady feedback of information

          9  between design staff, operation and maintenance

         10  personnel is a very important asset.

         11                 And, finally, often City agencies use

         12  technical staff shortages and headcount for their

         13  agency as the rationale for contracting out.

         14                 But, in fact, if we take a closer

         15  look, the headcount, we don't apply that to outside

         16  contracts.

         17                 The agency has in effect been told if

         18  you want more people on your payroll to do this

         19  work, you'll have to hire private firms. Even if

         20  their personnel is more expensive, less experienced

         21  and the whole process more time consuming and

         22  inefficient than increasing the agency's own staff,

         23  and pay more we do. If these firms cost more, and

         24  take longer to complete the job, the City doesn't

         25  want to hear about it. In a way, this is back door
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          2  privatization.

          3                 Investment in an in-house

          4  professional technical work force will have

          5  long-term payoffs. Long after the consultant is

          6  gone, in-house staff is available to work on any

          7  design or field problem of a project.

          8                 Competition will help drive down

          9  consultant fees and improve quality.

         10                 On the other hand, continued

         11  widespread contracting out to consultants leads to

         12  the loss of in-house expertise and capability

         13  resulting in the inability to replace their services

         14  if need be. And we have many, many projects in which

         15  ultimately the contractor is forced off the job and

         16  it is the in-house staff that has to pick up on it.

         17                 In summation, contracting out results

         18  in higher costs, lower quality, can have political

         19  corruption connected to it, and a loss of in-house

         20  capability and a loss of government accountability.

         21                 Any City construction agency that

         22  seeks out A And E services should be forced to

         23  demonstrate that it will be cost effective to do so.

         24  And I believe that providing the service in-house

         25  will usually prove to be the most cost effective.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          4                 MR. SHAKIR: Thank you, Chair. My

          5  colleague, I think he give most of the points, and I

          6  don't like to repeat those same points, but I do

          7  suggest and strongly recommend this Council to keep

          8  in mind, balance the jobs and balance the budget and

          9  keep the deficit down, and keep our in-house

         10  expertise. We should have the in-house jobs at least

         11  substantial 30 to 40 percent. That will have our

         12  expert staff in the in-house and also they will be

         13  able to monitor and keep the low cost, control the

         14  consultants' quality, they will control the

         15  consultants' cost and that is the main thing all

         16  here.

         17                 Without our effective and expert

         18  staff in-house, I don't think we'll be able to

         19  control the cost of the consultants, because we are

         20  the ones, our in-house staff, we supervise the

         21  consultant staff. We guide the consultant staff for

         22  design, for supervision and every level of the

         23  projects. And we are the main, our members are the

         24  key people to control the cost and the quality and

         25  safety of the project.

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 So, it's very, very important to keep

          3  job in-house and let in-house job, let in-house

          4  staff maintain some jobs, that's where we keep the

          5  quality and also cost effective.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          8  Here's a question for you.

          9                 Now, this intro talks about QBS, and

         10  the whole process of QBS, and have you heard the

         11  testimony of everyone here today?

         12                 MR. FORSTER: Pretty much, I think so,

         13  yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pretty much.

         15                 Okay, and you haven't submitted any

         16  testimony formally in writing but you're going to be

         17  doing that?

         18                 MR. FORSTER: Yes, sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I would

         20  assume that you're going to either address any

         21  aspects of what testimony that we'll put in the

         22  record that you disagree with, so that we can -- I

         23  mean, this Committee, as I said in my opening

         24  statement, we want to start this debate and hear

         25  everyone, everyone on this particular matter, in
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          2  order for us to determine whether or not we should

          3  support or should not support Intro. 45.

          4                 And to the best of my knowledge,

          5  everyone that spoke here today was in favor of

          6  Intro. 41 (sic), with the exception of the two of

          7  you which represents your Local 375 of DC 37, and

          8  the Mayor's Office of Contracts.

          9                 So, you know, I and this Committee

         10  would want to hear what you have to say specifically

         11  on your opposition to Intro. 45.

         12                 But concerning the whole issue, I

         13  heard you say here that you want to be able to

         14  compete just like they do?

         15                 MR. FORSTER: Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right now you do

         17  not compete? I mean, I'm not going to make any

         18  assumptions like I don't do anything. I assume that

         19  you only get the work that the Commissioner says

         20  that you're going to do?

         21                 MR. FORSTER: That's right.

         22                 MR. SHAKIR: Right.

         23                 MR. FORSTER: And it has been a

         24  history of the house staff having actually been

         25  reduced. We may be looking at that again in this
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          2  budget crisis, and, so, a progressively greater

          3  amount has constantly been contracted out.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, I've heard

          5  either a representative or your president say that

          6  the Charter mandates that in-house staff do 40

          7  percent of the contracting out work.

          8                 MR. FORSTER: Yes, that's only for the

          9  school, School Construction Authority, and it's not

         10  the City Charter, it's the State legislation that

         11  set up SCA.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, 40

         13  percent?

         14                 MR. FORSTER: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And that's not

         16  happening?

         17                 MR. SHAKIR: No.

         18                 MR. FORSTER: It's not happening in

         19  SCA, but was only mandated for SCA in particular.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         21                 MR. FORSTER: It's the only agency

         22  that has that mandate.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         24                 I was wondering whether or not that

         25  was part of this. So that's not really concerning
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          2  Intro. 45.

          3                 MR. FORSTER: No. I wish it was.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          5                 Any questions?

          6                 Dr. Stewart.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

          8                 You said that one of the differences

          9  you have with QBS is that you wanted them to

         10  continue the same way, using price and then going to

         11  qualification. You said they pick the lowest, the

         12  three lowest bids, and then you go to qualification,

         13  and if those three lowest bids are knocked out you

         14  go to the next three?

         15                 MR. FORSTER: Yes, sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: My question

         17  is, how do you address the overrun that usually

         18  occur after you've given someone the bid? If it's

         19  the lowest bid and they did not perform the job,

         20  probably because you have so much overrun, they bid

         21  that low because they wanted the job, just because

         22  they want the jobs; how do you address the overruns

         23  issue?

         24                 MR. FORSTER: Right. First of all,

         25  although that has been alleged in many, many cases,
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          2  that when we get the lowest bid we're going to end

          3  up with necessarily cost overruns, I don't know that

          4  statistically we can necessarily show that.

          5                 However, I think that what we're also

          6  talking about is the quality -- we want to integrate

          7  the two, we're not against quality-based selection.

          8  We do want to integrate that. But we also believe

          9  that fiscal responsibility is obviously terribly

         10  important to all of us at this particular time.

         11                 So, we're looking for a way to mesh

         12  those, because I do not think that we can -- one of

         13  the things, although we often disagree with what the

         14  City says about things, one of the things she did

         15  say was that it creates a very difficult situation

         16  to negotiate a price if you've kind of already

         17  decided that your highest firm in terms of quality

         18  is the one you're going to go with. I mean, how do

         19  you have a perspective then in terms of what

         20  somebody else might offer, if you only negotiate

         21  with that top firm.

         22                 We're suggesting that what we need is

         23  actually a meshing of these two, we're very much

         24  supportive of quality-based selection, that's a good

         25  thing, but we have to continue to keep the criteria
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          2  of price involved with that selection process.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And just like I

          4  asked you to submit your testimony and comment on

          5  what any of the advocates that was in favor of

          6  Intro. 45, and advocates, if you're out there and if

          7  you've heard any of their testimony, and if you have

          8  any comments on what they have to say, this

          9  Committee would be interested in hearing your

         10  comments on that.

         11                 MR. FORSTER: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And let me just

         13  say, I did not think that this hearing was going to

         14  go three hours, and in fact, it has, and it's been

         15  very, very engaging from a process of listening to

         16  everyone, and having the members of this Committee

         17  and the prime sponsor, Council Member Helen Sears of

         18  Queens, and to engage in a discussion and dialogue

         19  on this, and I appreciate everyone coming and at

         20  this point in time we are now, 1:00 p.m. we're

         21  supposed to be out of here, and congratulations to

         22  all of us for having an engaging hearing, and I call

         23  this hearing adjourned.

         24                 MR. SHAKIR: Thank you.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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